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Profit Before Taxation £132.0m
Better than 2003 by: 1.5%

Earnings attributable to Equity £84.7m
Shareholders (after tax)
Better than 2003 by: 1.6%

Operating Income £509.0m

Better than 2003 by: 1.2%

Operating Costs £314.2m
Higher than 2003 by: 1.5%

Cost/income ratio 61.7%
Higher than 2003 by: 0.2 percentage points

Charge for Bad and Doubtful debts  £62.8m

As a percentage of Loans and 0.82%
Advances to Customers

After Tax Return on Opening 15.2%
Equity Shareholders’ Funds

Risk Asset Ratio:

Overall 15.0%
Tier1 10.2%
Increase in Average Retail 7%

Customer Deposits

Increase in Average Retail 41%
Customer Lending



Performance
indicators.

Profit before tax of £132.0 million,
anincrease of 1.5%.

The after tax return on opening equity
was 15.2%.
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Graham Bennett, Chair

Chair’s statement:
standing out from

the crowd.

| am pleased to report the 11th consecutive year
of recerd profits for The Co-cperative Bank.

In anintensely competitive financial services
market this is a great achigverrent, and one
that continues to demonstrate that sustainable
profit growth is achievable for a business with
ethical and co-operative values so clearly in
place. Our challenge over the coming years
i$ 10 sustain this success which will require
ongoing further investment in our business.

The Bank's Profit Before Tax was £132.0 million,
£1.9 million higher than 2003, and the Return
on Opening Equity after tax was 15.2%.
Earnings after tax attributable to our ultimate
shareholder, the Co-operative Group (CWS)
Limited, were £84.7 million, an increase of
1.6% compared t0 2003.

in a crowded market place, The Co-operative
Bank's ethical palicy continues te differentiate
it from the competition, and 1 believe that this,
together with our excellent service, attractive
products and variety of service channels has
been the foundation for our success over

the years.

To build on this, the formation of Co-cperative
Financial Services Limited (CFS) in 2002
brought the Bank (including smile) and
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Ca-operative Insurance Society Limited (CIS)
together under common leadership, and a
major programme of work wasg initiated to
enable the offering of a much wider range of
products to all of CFS' customers. Whilst this
programme has been put on hold to allow
management to concentrate on the
modernisation of CIS, we will be able to
resume the focus on integration in 2006

and beyond.

Al a time when thousands of UK jobs are being
lost to ofishore locations we are continuing

to recruit staff to service centre positions in
North-West England. We believe that if we are
to continue to provide the high levels of service
that our customers have come to expect from
The Co-operative Bank, it is essential that our
customer-facing roles are retained within the UK.

The Co-operative Bank is part of the
Co-gperative Group and last year the Group
made a commitment to return a share of its
profits te its members. This was successfully
delivered in October and | am pleased to say
that in October 2005 the Group will be making
a further payment o its members. This payment,
in line with our co-operative principles, will be
linked to the amount of trade the member has
transacted with the Group, including The
Co-operative Bank .

Finally, | would like to give thanks to my
fellow Board members for their commitment
and continuing support. The Bank has
continued te strengthen its Beard in 2004
with the appointment of a third Independent
Professicnal Non-Executive Director. Tony
Lancaster, who was appointed in May 2004.
New Executive Cirector appointments included
John Reizenstein, CFS Executive Director.
Finance and Actuarial and Craig Shannon,
CFS Executive Director, Marketing.

I would like to take lhis opportunity to paricularly
thank Keith Darwin, a Non-Executive Director,
who had served on the Bank Board from 2000
to his retirement in May 2004, He was appointed
Chair of Co-operative Graup in 2000 and Chair
of CFS in 2002. The Chief Executive, Sir Mervyn
Pedelty alsc retired in December 2004, and
the Board would like to record its thanks for
his services.

Graham Bennett, Chair



Summary

2004 has been the gleventh year of record profits
for The Co-operative Bank, however, we are far
from camplacent. Cur co-operative values and
ethical principles continue to differentiate us
from our competitors, but the financial services
market remaing intensely competitive —so, if
we are {0 maintain our position, we recognise
the need to keep investing in and developing
all areas of our business.

The formation of Co-operative Financial Services
Limited (CFS) in 2002 brought together the
Bank (including smile) and the Co-cperative
Insurance Scciety Limited {CIS) under common
leadership. A major programme of integration
was set in motion to oifer a much wider range
of products to our customers. Althcugh we
have seen some early successes, we decided
in 2004 that further progress would be deferred
until an extensive programme of modemising
CIS was complete, and | will report on that in
more detail.

in 2004, the Bank made significant progress
developing our customer service and
introducing new products in both personal and
business banking and we expect this trend to
continue in 2005.

Paul Hewitt, Acting Chief Executive

Chief Executive’s
overview: meeting
the challenge.

Financial performance

In 2004, the Bank produced a pre-tax profit of
£132.0 million, £1.9 million higher than 2003
giving us our eieventh consecutive year of
record profits. With market conditions
remaining challenging for the financial services
industry in general, | am pleased to report this
steady progress — although, as | menticn
above, maintaining and enhancing our growth
will require more investment. The Return on
Opening Equity, after tax, was 15.2%. Our
Operating Income grew by 1.2% and the
Cost/Income Ratio increased by 0.2%. Average
retail customer lending balances grew by 41%
and average retail customer deposit balances
by 7%. The charge for bad and doubtiul debts
stood at ©.82% of year-end ioans and
advances. which was 0.21 percentage points
lower than in 2003,

Co-operative Financial Services

Since the creation of Co-operative Financial
Services {CFS) in 2002, we have moved steadily
toward our objective of offering customers a
much broader range of co-operative financial
products than they could previously receive
from either the Bank or CIS operating
separately. For example, in January 2004 the
Bank began promoting CiS home insurance.
and CIS Financial Advisers started to offer
Co-operative Bank credit cards, loans and
current accounts. We have also created a
single CFS mortgage operation, supporting
the Bank's mertgage portfolio.

in the second half of 2004, CIS began a
thorough modernisation programme, which
will continue throughout 2005 and which we
need to complete before developing the CFS
offer further. When the new operating model for
our insurance business is established, we will
be able to resume our focus on infegrating
Bank and CIS activities,




People

Our staff, and their commitment, have always
been critical to the success of The
Co-operative Bank. They are vital to the quality
of our customer service and 50, as we maks
significant changes to our organisation,
investing in our employees remains a key
priority. In 2005 we will be progressing our
waork/life balance policies, as well as staff
learning and development initiatives.

Unlike many of our competitors, we are
committed to retaining our primary customer
service operations in the UK. At a time when
thousands of UK jobs are being lost to offshore
locations, we are recruiting - along with CI3 —to
fill around 500 service centre positions in North-
West England. Our conviction is that customer-
facing roles are of paramount importance, and
should be retained geographically close to our
main business operations.

As an organisation, we are keen contributors
to the development and improvement of the
wider community —and we encourage our staff
to work voluntarily for charities, credit unions
and community organisations. During 2004,
CFS staff gave the equivalent of 1,526 days tc
community organisations, taking part both in
team challenges - such as gardening for
elderly people or painting community centres -
and individual volunteering — including reading
with school children and becaming a Prince's
Trust Business Mentor. As well as bringing
obvious benefits to the community, these
activities also help our staff's personal
development; teaching them skills such as
tearmn building, project management,
communication and creative thinking.

Service channels

We aim to make our services as accessible to
customers as possibie. Over 77% of the Bank's
staff are now involved in customer-facing
activities, an increase from 75% last year, and
this has had an impact on the thinking and
culture of our organisation. in 2004 we focused
our investrment on four key areas: call centres,
branches, the Internet and ATMs.

We have continued to integrate the activities
of Bank ang CIS calf centres; for example,
Bank staff can now take calls relating to
insurance products. As well as improving
customer service, this also makes mcre
efficient use of our resources. With the same
staff able to deal with both Bank and CIS
customers, we have made over 100,000 sales
contacts during the vear. and arranged more
than 13,500 financial adviser appointments.

Branch refurbishments during 2004 were
pricritised to ensure compliance with the new
Disability Discrimination Act {DDA) regulations.
which came into force on the 1st October, and
works are now completed or ongoing in most
branches. There are just four branches
remaining and we have long-term plans in
place for these to ensure their compliance.

We have taken a principled stance tc the issue
of ATM charges - charging only at the mincrity
of our ATMs where low usage would make a
charge free ATM uneconomic, and ensuring
that signage clearly indicates charges. Each
year areview of the usage of these machines
is undertaken, and, where usage levels warrant,
charges are removed. We believe that, with
these protections, a cash machine with a
charge is a better facility for the community than
no cash machine at all; when asked, 61% of
Co-cperative Group customers agreed with us.

We're committed
to keeping our call
centres in Britain.



We have continued
to integrate the Bank
and CIS call centres.

Personal banking

in 2004 the success of our residential
mortgages continued with balances growing
to over £3.2 billion. Qur mortgages combine
value for money with a range of enviranmentally
friendly features; for each mortgage on its
books, CFS makes an annual payment to
Climate Care, an organisation dedicated to
helping combat global warming by countering
the emissions of carbon dicxide. In the past
12 months this coniribution amounted to
£225,000 and cne of the projects financed was
the replanting of 53 hectaras of new forest

in Uganda. providing employment to over
400 tocal workers. Homes produce almost a
quarter of the UK's total cutput of carbon
dioxide emissions, but last year CFS projects
helped to cffset over 40,000 tonnes of carbon
dioxide generated by CFS custormers' homes.
This equates to oifsetting 20% of each
household's carbon dioxide emissions.

We alsc enhanced and built on our product
range during 2004; launches included the
Balanced Savings Plan, retention mortgages
and the Bonus Account.

Our Balanced Savings Plan allows customers
to split their savings equally into two accounts;
a Fixed Term Deposit with a guaranteed
interest rate tor one year. and a Guaranteed
Stock Market Deposil Bond where the interest
rate is based on 75% of any rise of the FTSE
100 index over five years. New investment
products included a market-ieading fixed rate
deposit bond and issue ten of cur popular
Guaranteed Stock Market Deposit Bond.

Retention mortgages were launched in April
2004, aimed at providing existing mortgage
cusiomers who are coming to the end of their
introductory period with a fee-free alternative
to re-mortgaging to another lender. The range
now includes 2 and 3 year discounted
mortgages. and 2, 3 and 5 year fixed rate
products, and is another example of how we
are developing our products in line with
customers’ needs.

The Bonus Acceunt for chitdren, which
promoetes and contributes to the animal welfare
charity the Born Free Foundation, was also
successfully re-launched. The intention is
for each child to learn to understand the
importance of budgeting, how to use a cash
card and how to keep track of their spending.
With this goal in mind, each child is sent
educational gifts when the account is opened
and at key stages in their development, all
supplied by the Born Free Foundation.

Our portfalio of affinity credit cards has
continued its success. These cards generate
donations to the affinity partner each time they
are used by a cardhaoider and. during 2004,
generated a total of more than £1.59 million
for our partners, providing a source of much
needed funds for their work. We now have
over 30 partners benefiting from the scheme
including high profile organisations such as
Amnesty International, Oxfam and Greenpeace.
RSPS is our longest running affinity partner
and in the past five years over £3 million has
been raised for Britain's threatened wetlands
through this affinity card.




Independent financial advice

Co-operative Bank Financial Advisers (CBFA),
our IFA subsidiary, confirmed its positicn as a
leading independent financial adviser when it
came runner up in the hotly contested Best
Independent Financial Adviser category of the
Guardian/Observer Consumer Finance
Awards 2004.

In our latest customer survey 949% of
respondents expressed satisfaction with their
CBFA Adviser, and overall customer salisfaction
with the services CBFA offers was 86%. Among
the reasans given for this result were the
professionalism, knowledge and trustworthiness
of our Advisers.

1,219 new hospital

beds created

Internet banking
smile, our dedicated Internet banking service,

celebrated its fifth anniversary in October 2004,

Launched at the height of the Internet boom in
1999, it was the UK's first full service onlfine
bank, and has avoided the problems suffered
by others in this market, some of whom have
withdrawn from the marketplace entirely. It
meved quickly from being a start-up to an
established business, and is still growing
strongly and profitably.

This year, we strengthened the smile brand

further with a national TV advertising campaign.

We also gained scme excellent publicity with
the 'smile Cape 2 Cape' challenge, where we
sponsored celebrated polar explorer David
Hempleman-Adams to fly a small training
plane from Cape Columbiz in the Canadian
Arctic Circle to Cape Hernin Chile.

through the Private

Finance Initiative.
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Several awards and surveys recognisad the
quatlity of service smile offers. In the Guardian/
Observer Consumer Finance Awards, it won
‘Best ISA Provider’, ‘Best Credit Card Provider'
and ‘Best Customer Service Overall'. For the
second year running, smile won the ‘Best Bank
website' at the prestigious Online Finance
Awards. Magazine readers also showed their
appreciation: Personal Finance named smife
‘Best Online Bank' and Moneywise voted it
‘Best Current Account in Britain'.

QOur customers have continued to increase
their use of the Co-operative Bank’s Internet
Banking Service. The total number of
registered Internet banking customers grew
by 20% and over 14 million bank statements
were viewed online in 2004, illustrating how
important the Internet banking service is as a
service channel for many of our customers.




The smile brand campaign
took off with the sponsored
Cape 2 Cape challenge.

Corporate and business banking

In 2004, our corporate customer base
continued to grow. particularly in those areas
where we have developed specific expertise:
small to medium-sized enterprises (SMEs),
charities, the public sector, co-operative
organisations and social enterprises.

Having bacome, in 2003, the first UK clearing
bank to receive endorsement from the
Federaticn of Smali Businesses (FSB), in
March 2004 we launched FSB Business
Banking. This is a banking package tailored
to the needs of FSB members and promoted
directiy to them. It offers excellent value for
money for small businesses, combined with
the reassurance of ethical investment.

March 2004 saw the launch of Clarity Business
Banking, a new account which offers SMEs
afixed fee structure, a guaranteed credit
interest rate and free legal, tax and counselling
helplines. This is a free service offering
businesses expert advice on issues that
directly affect their business and their famiiies.
Customers are also automalically covered by
our commercial legal protection policy, giving
them up to £50,000 of cover per claim should
they be involved in any legal dispute.

2004 also brought a number of high-profile
corpoerate projects, such as helping te finance
the new £30 million head office for the
Littlewoods group of companies - a converted,
listed aircraft hangar in Speke.

in the charity and not-for-profit sector, the
Community Directplus account, now in its
second year, helped us denate £20.000 to
charitable groups. Designed specifically to
meet the needs of community and voluntary
organisations, charities, social enterprises and
co-operatives, the account features a donation
fund that we add to as overall deposits grow.
This year, we were pleased to give grants to

a variety of special projects, including the
introduction of a rape crisis and sexual abuse
helpline and the provision of equipment for an
amateur sperts club.

Our involvermnent with the Private Finance
Initiative (PFI) market continued to grow in
2004. The Bank financed PFls that helped o
build 17 new schools, a new hospital and two
new hospital wings — providing 1.219 new
hospital beds. We also contributed funding
to five NHS LIFT {Local Improvement Finance
Trust) schemes: through which we were able
to finance new community related health
properties such as primary care centres and
GP surgeries.

"




The Co-operative movement

Our commitment to the co-operative approach,
and the value we place on our positicn within
the co-operative movement, remained as
strong as ever in 2004. It continues to influgnce
many aspects of ocur business and is
particularly significant in our relationship with
the Co-operative Group. Last year the Group
made a commitment 1o return a share of their
profits to all their members. This was delivered
in October 2004 to over 600,000 members in
the form of a £10 flat payment. In October 2005
there will be a further payment, linked to the
amount of trade that the individual member
makes with the Group family of businesses,
including the Bank.

To extend our product offering across the
Co-operative Group, we launched an exclusive
Members' Savings Account to Co-operative
Group members. Over 8,000 accounts were
opened in the year, with members depositing
more than £2.8 million.

As part of our engoing programme, we
increased the number of cash machines within
co-operative retail stores by 500, bringing the
total number of cash machines in the Bank's
estate to over 2,100 by the year end. This offers
greater convenience to a wide range of
Co-operative cusfomers, and in 2005 we plan
to install a further 575.

Co-operative Retail Store
cash machines increased

to 2,100.

A responsible business

As in previous years. our commitment to sccial,
ethical and envircnmental issues earned both
naticnal and internationai recognition during
2004. The CFS Sustainability Report 2003
emerged as ‘'number oneg’ in the tiennial
global benchmark of sustainability reporting
commissioned by the Unitad Nations
Environment Programme. We are particutarly
proud of this, as the reports of some 2,000
companies from arcund the world were
considered.

The Association of Chariered Certified
Accountants (ACCA) judged our 2003
Sustainability Report the UK's best. singling
out the Report's "impressive coverage and
grasp of relevant issues. ... both informative
and transparent”. We were also proud to be
awarded an Electronic Media Commendation
for the online version of the Report.

Being a responsible business affects all
aspects of our operations, and within CFS we
have been working towards accreditation for
the environmental management system SO
14001 In 2004, we became the first major
financial institution to gain certification.

This encompasses the compiete range ot
operations, products, senvices and
investments of CFS, CIS, The Co-operative
Bank and smile.

This year we celebrated ten years of
‘Customers Who Care’ campaigns whereby
we donate 1.25p per £100 spent on customers'
Visa credit and debit cards to good causes
and campaigning. Since its launch, we have
donated over £3 million to more than 80 charities
and crganisations through the scheme and we
have aclively campaigned on a broad range of
issues relating to our Ethical Policy.

In 2004, we continued our Safer Chemicals
campaign in partnership with leading
environmental charity, WWF-UK. Highlights
in 2004 included an awarenass-raising
advertising campaign in naticnal press,
reaching one in three of the popuilation, which
was awarded the IVCA Clarion Award far
Advertising and Promotion. The annual
customer vote divided a campaign donation
of £112,000 between five charities. Almost
50% of customers taking part voted to
support the Bhopal Medical Appeal. Onthe
20th anniversary of the Bhopal disaster, our
donation funded an entire years medicine
supply and a solar powered generator for
anew clinic set up to help survivors.



CFS Sustainability Report 2003
named ‘number one’ by UN
Environment programme.

The year ended with the launch of a new
‘Customers Who Care' campaign for Trade
Justice. The campaign, in partnership with
Christian Aid, recognises the important part
trade could and should play in reducing
poverty. Throughout 2005 the campaign will
call on Government to change the unjust rules
which govern rade in poor countries.

As a leading exponent of ethical consumertsm,
the Bank is also an analyst of and commentator
on the wider ethical marketplace. In our fcurth
annual Ethical Purchasing Index (EPI},
published in December 2004, we reported that
the UK market in ethical consumerism has
increased to £24.7 billion per year. This unigue
measure of the market for ethical goeds and
services has observed steep growth, where the
share of the averall market taken by ethical
products and services has increased by
almost 40% in five years.

2005 and beyond

So as we look ahead, how we develop and
invest in our business will always be guided
by our belief in social, ethical and environmental
responsibility —and Dy our determination to
provide the best possible service for our
customers. From the way we 1ook after the
interests of our staff to the types of products
we offer, our values will continue to guide
every initiative.

We have deveioped rcbust plans to ensure
that our long-term strategy of satisfying our
customers’ wider financial needs will be
delivered. Once the extensive CIS
modernisation programme is complete we will
continue to integrate our businesses and | am
corwinced that this will lay the foundation for a
successful future; one in which we can harness
the competitive advantages that we have from
our brand, and the trust our customers place in
us, to drive the Bank and CFS forward.

4
/

Paul Hewitt, Acting Chief Executive
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Mortgage balance growth
has now exceeded
£3.2 billion.



Operating and
inancial review:

rowth &

investment.

Financial highlights

In 2004, The Co-operative Bank achieved a
Profit Before Tax of £132.0 million, £1.9 million
higher than 2003, and a Return on Opening
Equity after tax of 15.2%. Earnings attributable
to the Equity shareholder, after tax and before
a dividend of £20 million, were £84 7 million,
an increase ¢f 1.6% compared to 2003.

Results Summary

Operating Income
Operating Costs

Operating Profit {before Bad Debts)

Bad Debt Provisions
Profit Before Tax
Retained profit

Caost/income Ratio

The eleventh year of record profits arose from &
1.2% growth in Operating Income and a stable
bad debt charge, partially offset by a 1.5%
increase in Operating Costs. Although the
credit climate was benign in 2004, the Bank
has continued to adopt a cautious lending
policy while expanding both lending and
deposit balances. In particular strong growth in
lower risk, first mortgage advances combined
with tight credit criteria for other new business
has enhanced credit quality.

2004 2003 Change
£m £m £m
509.0 502.9 6.1
(314.2) (309.5) 4.7)
194.8 193.4 1.4
(62.8) 163.3) 0.5
132.0 1301 19
64.7 63.4 13
61.7% 61.6% 0.2%

This has delivered a 0.21 percentage point
improvement in the charge for bad debts as a
percentage of year end balances te only
0.82% for 2004. Growth in Operating Income,
on the back of this balance sheet growth, was
offset by lower wholesale market income and
tighter lending marging. Despite further
investment in the sales and service
infrastructure, combined with additional
expenditure on reguiatory compliance and
staff pensions, the overall increase in
Operating Costs has been contained by
tight cost centrol and the generation of
synergy benefits from further integration with
Co-operative Financial Services (CFS) and
Co-operative Insurance Society (CIS). As a
result the Cost/income ratic only increased by
0.2% t0 61.7%.

The Bank's policy is to maintain a strong
balance sheet with consistently robust liquidity
and capital ratios, enhanced by the issue
of £150 million Tier 2 dated and callable
subordinated notes in April 2004. The year-
end Risk Asset Ratic was 15.0% with a Tier 1
Ratio of 10.2%. substantially higher than the
regulatory requirements.
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In an uncertain climate,
the Bank maintains a
cautious lending policy.

in 2004 growth in the UK economy was higher
than the long term trend rate, fuelled by high
cansumer spending supported by low interest
rates, high employment and low inflation.

The cutlook for 2005 is generally weaker with
slower growth rates in Gross Domestic
Product, seme indications that the housing
market is beginning to cool and signs that
censumers' ability and willingness to spend will
be weakened by slower growth in employment
and riging interast rates.

In this uncertain climate and in the face of
greater competition, the Bank maintains a
cauticus iending policy with growth targeted
at both sides of the balance sheet. Retail
deposits continue to form an important part
of the Bank's funding strategy but were
supported by additional wholesale balances
to fund the growth in lending and erhance
capital ratios. lnvestment in sophisticated
credit risk rating systems has facilitated

the application of strict credit criteria to

both personal and corporate business and
is a keystone in the development of the
Basel accord.




Balance Sheet

Average retail customer deposits of £6,566
million grew by £408 million (79) cver the year.
Average customer retail lending balances
increased at a faster rate reaching £6,974 million,
anincrease of £2,024 million (41%), principally
due to growth in residential mortgages.

Retail lending

The Personal sector dominated the growth
in retail lending balances with an increase
ot £1,948 million (61%) compared to 2003
although the Corporate sector still achieved
growth of 4% in an intensely competitive
market. In 2004 the Bank continued with its
strategy of carelully targeting growth at the
residential mortgage market to increase the
proportion of secured lending and to reduce
the Bank's unsecured credit exposure whilst
maintaining the balance between personal
and corperate business in the portiolio.

The residential martgage market was relatively
buoyant in the first half of the year but stowed
in the second haif following a series of base
rate rises and the introduction of new mortgage
regulation in Cctober. The growth in the Bank's
mortgage portfolic reflected this market position
with stronger growth achieved in the first half
of the year. In addition the Bank acquired £360
million of mortgage assets from CIS in May
2004 increasing average halances by £195
million. In¢luding this acquisition, total average
mortgage balances increased by £1,809
million reaching £3,292 million by the end of
the year. The Bank cantinued to develop the
range of products, including fixed, capped
and discounted variable rate products. The
Bank also offers "green’ mortgage products,
which include free energy surveys and a
donation to Climate Care, in line with its ethical
and environmental policies and remains a
responsible lender avoiding significant lending
in the higher risk sectors of the market. The
average Loan to Value at the end of the year
was just 42% and only 20% of mertgages have
a Loan to Value of mere than 75%.

Mortgages contributed the most significant
growth in the year and the Bank’s determination
not to compromise lending criteria in the face
of rising interest rates and increasing
competition resulted in good but slower
overail rates of growth in other Retail lending
balances including VISA and perseonal loans.

The Bank continues 1o offer a range of VISA
cards including a Travel Reward VISA card,
which pays points that are redeemable at our
sister organisalion, Travelcare, Average VISA
baiances increased by £94 million (10%)

in the year. Moderate growth was also
achieved in other Personal iending products,
excluding mortgages.

Growth of £408 million in average retail
customer deposits arose both in the Personal
and Corperate sectars. Average Personal sector
deposit balances increased by £253 million
(6%} to £4,483 miltion, with growth particuiarly
strong in current accounts, ISAs and bonds.
The Bank's internet operation, smile, continues
to grow and average deposits increased a
further 7% during the year. smile continues to
offer a wide range of personal barking products
and to win awards including ‘Best Customer
Service Overall', ‘Best ISA Provider” and ‘Best
Credit Card Provider’ at the Guardian/Observer
Consumer Finance Awards 2004 and the 'Best
Bank website’ at the On-line Finance awards.

Building on the success in the previous year
the Bank launched further tranches of its
Guaranteed Stock Market Deposit Bonds.
The Bonds provide savings customers with a
capital guarantee and an interest return finked
to the performance of the stock market. The
Bank also launched a new Balanced Savings
Plan, which combines a guaranteed fixed rate
of interest and a return based on growth in the
stock market.

The Corporate sector achieved a satistactory
growth of 8% in average deposits, reaching a
total balance of £2,083 million. Growth was
achieved across the Corporate customer base
including some significant and prestigious
arrangernents finalised with organisations
including the North West Regional Assembly
and the Committee of European Banking
Supervisors. The Bank consistently aims to
provide excellent customer service combined
with competitive products which match
customers’ commercial requirements. In order
to achieve this, bespcke Corporate products
have been designed for specific groups of
customers including Business Directplus —
abanking service for SMEs —and an account
designed for the community and voluntary
sectors, Community Directpius. The Bank has
achieved an impressive growth in both these
accounts during the year. Take up of the
bespoke business banking package for
members of the Federation of Small
Businesses, launched in 2004, has also been
encouraging. The Bank increased its presence
in the public sector market particularly with
regard to Private Finance Initiative (PFI) deals
to construct schools, hospitals and polica
stations as well as post-construction funding
for roads.



Partnerships

During 2004 the Bark continued to develop
its partnership with the Co-operative Group
and with CIS. The closer relationship with CfS
included a numbier of cross-selling initiatives
betwaen the two Organisations. C|g’ financial
advisers have Successtully sald fixed term
deposits and Guaranteed Stack Market
Deposit Bonds on behalf of the Bank, and the
Bank has promoted certain CIS general
Nsurance products. Buring the year the Bank
purchased £360 million of morigage assets
from CiS crealing a single mortgage portfolio
for CFS on the Bank's modern systems
platform. This strateqy ensurad that cis
avoided Rotentially significant systems and
compliance development costs on its own
mortgage systams,

The Bank remains commifted to the
development of CFS ag afinancial services
provider for a broad range ot co-operative
Custorners and has achieved s0me significant
early successes and benelits. CIS is now
undergoing a comprehensiva modernisation
programme which will extend throughout 2005,

This programme wili enable CIS to compete
successtully in today's financial services
market and will create sigriificant further
cross-salling opportunities for the Bank once
the modernisation programme is complete.
The Bank continues ta maintain strong
collabiorative tinks with the wider Co-operative
mavement and the Co-operative Group and
offers arange of C0-0p branded credit cards,
Savings accounts and other services,
including a bespoke banking package
Co-aperative Directpius. During the year the
Bank successfully launched a Memberg'
Savings account, offering a competitive rate
of interast, tp members of the Co-operative
Group, creating an alternative to investment
in share capita of the Sociaty

The total number of ATMSs located within
Co-operative retail storas has cantinued 1o
increase. In 2004 mare than 500 ATis were
installeq, bringing the total number of cagh
machines in the Bank's estate 1o over 2,100 by

the year end. Severa; hundred additional cash
maching installations are also planned for 2008.

During 2004 the
Bank developed

its partnership

with the Co-operative
Group and CIS
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Operating income

Operating Income of £509.0 million
represented a madest growth of £6.1 millicn
compared to 2003. Although Non-Interest
Income increased by £13.5 million (8% this
was offset by a decrease in Net Interest of
£7.4 millicn (2%).

The decline in Net Interest Income was
principally due to lower wholesale Net Inlerest
Income in difficult wholesale markets, and a
reduction in the Bark's overai! net interest
margin offset by the positive impact of higher
customer balances.

Net interest from the Bank's Treasury
wholesale activities has declined as the Bank
trades in lower risk markets where profitable
oppertunities have been limited over the fast
year. A largs proportion of the Bank's Treasury
Net Interest Income is generated from trading
in the sterling money markets. Changes
recently introduced by the Bank of England
have reduced the volatility in the short-term
monegy markets which, combined with a flat
yield curve, has led to fewer opportunities for
Treasury net income. The net yield from the
Bank's longer-term investment portfalio has
also declined as maturing, high yielding,
investments are replaced with lower yielding
assets in the current lower interest rate
environment. During 2004, dealing activities
consistently operated well below their
maximum ‘Value at Risk’ levels and exposure
10 market risk was similar to last year.

Average Balances and Interest Margins 2004
£m

Net Interest Income 3249
Average Balances

Interest-earning Assets 9,604
Interest-bearing Liabilities 7,959
Interest-free Liabilities 1,645
Average Rates %
Gross Yigld on interest-earning Assets  6.2%
Cost ol Interest-earning Liabilities 3.4%
Interest Spread 2.8%
Contribution of Interest-free Liabilities 0.6%
Net Interest Margin 3.4%
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in the Retail sector Net Interest Income
increased, reflecting higher customer balances
partly offset by a reduction in the Bank's overall
net interest margin. Average interest-earning
assets of £3,604 million increased by £1,059
million (12%). reflecting growth in retail
customer lending of £2,024 million, including
strong growth in mortgage lending, offset by

a decrease in intergst-earning wholesale
market placements of £965 million. Average
interest-bearing liatilities rose by £903 million
(13%) to £7,959 million, driven by growth in
average interest-bearing retail customer
deposits of £311 million and growth in
wholesale deposits of £592 million including
£150 million Tier 2 loan stock issued in April.
The increase in average interest-free liabilities
mainly arose from higher Current Account
baiances and the Bank's retained earnings.

The decline in net interest margin was partly

a conseguence of the strong growth achieved
in mortgage lending compared to a lower
growth rate in corporate lending and
unsecured personal lending. Secured, quality,
mortgage lending represents a lower credit
risk compared to unsecured perscnal lending
and so0 attracts a lower margin. Margins for
individual unsecured lending products have
also declined in line with industry trends, and
particutarly so for credit cards reflecting the
impact from intense price cornpetition during
a period when funding costs have been
increasing as a result of higher interest rates.

2003 Change
£m £m
3323 (7 4)
8.543 1.058
7.056 903
1.489 156

% %
62% -
2.8% 0.6%
3.4% 10.6)%
0.5% 0.1%
3.9% {0.5)%

As aresult of the combination of lower lending
margins, improvement in the credit profile and
lower wholesale net interest, the Bank's overall
netinterest margin reduced fram 3 9% in 2003
o 3.4% in 2004.

Fees and Commission receivable increased
by £14.1 million (8%) mainty reflecting higher
interbank commigsion from the Bank's growing
ATM netwark, increased corporate arrangement
fees and growth in VISAincome. VISA
commission has increased due to balance
sheet growth including the impact of the
acguisition of the Nerthern Rock credit card
portfolio in June 2003. The Bark has
successfully developed and expanded its fee
bearing current account range to generate
additional fee income. These accounts,
including Privilege Premier, smilemore and
the basic Privilege account, offer a wide range
of services for a small monthly fee.

Fees and commissions payable have increased
by £10.3 million reflecting the fees paid to third
parties (including CiS) for the introduction of
new business and the amertisation of premium
paid on the purchase of the CIS mortgage
portfolio in 2004 and on the purchase of the
Narthern Rock credit card portfolio in 2003.

Insurance commission income declined by
£3.8 million due to lower cornmission income
generated by the independent financial adviser
subsidiary CBFA and a lower share of third
party insurance profits received from the
insurance provider.




Non-Interest Income 2004 2003 Change
£m £m £m
Fees and commission receivable 181.5 167.4 14.1
Ingurance Commission Income 46.2 50.0 {3.8)
Fees and commission payable {39.7} {39.4) {10.3)
Other Income. including Dealing
Profits/Losses 6.1 {7.4) 135
Total 184.1 13.5

170.6

Operating costs

Operating Costs of £314.2 million were £4.7
million higher than last year, a rise of oniy
1.5% reflecting adverse upward pressure
from inflation, funding pensions, regulatory
compliance and business investment offset by
tight cost contrel and the realisation of synergy
benefits from CF3. The Cost/Income ratio
increased by only 0.2% to 61.7%.

Staft costs were £7.8 million {5%) higher than
last year reflecting the annual pay award and
higher staft pension scheme contributions.
Following the pension fund actuarial valuation
in April 2003, contributions to the fund were
increased from 15.6% of pensionable salaries
Lo 22% from April 2004. For accounting

Other income increased by £13.5 million
mainly due to a £12.4 million improvement in
dealing prefit. The dealing profitin 2004 of £4.1
million included £4.3 million foreign exchange
profits partially offset by a loss of only £0.2
million from derivatives and debt securities,
reflecting the limited trading within the sterling
maney markets in 2004 referred to above. In
2003 the dealing loss of £8.3 million included
a profit of £3.9 million frem foreign exchange
offset by a loss of £12.2 million from derivatives
and debt securities. This dealing loss in 2003
was offset by higher net interest from heolding
trading instrurnents reflecting the more
axtensive trading in the sterling money markets
that year. Overall, the total income from frading
activities in 2004 was higher than 2003.

Contributions to the staff
pension fund were
increased from 15.6% to 22%

Operating Cost Analysis 2004 2003 Change
£m £m £m

Staff Costs
Wages and Salaries 98.9 955 34
Pensions and Social Security Costs 278 234 4.4
Other Staff Costs 7.9 79

134.6 126.8 1.3
Qther Administrative Expenses 156.9 161.5 (4.6}
Depreciation 22.7 212 15
Total Operating Costs 314.2 3095 4.7
Cost/income Ratio 61.7% 61.5% 0.2%

purposes the pension fund charge increase
was from the start of the year resulting in an
increased charge of £4.3 million from 2003.
Employea contributions have been introduced
for new staff in 2004 and phased in for existing
staff from the start of 2005 on a sliding scale.

Other operating costs were £3.1 million lower
than last year despite significant investment in
infrastructure, inciuding branch refurbishment
to meet new Disability Discrimination Act
regulations, integration of call centres with
CiS, redevelopment of internet access and
continued expansion of the income generating
ATM network. Investment has also been
required in industry-wide initiatives including

the roll out of 'Chip and PIN’ cards and further
development of BACS payment systems.
Higher costs have also been incurredin
preparation for a new regulatory environment
in the morlgage business together with other
requirements including compliance with FSA
Prudential Sourcebook, Basel Il, Anti Money
Laundering rules and international Financial
Reporting Standards. These additicnal
investrment and regulatory compliance costs
have been more than offset by strong cost
control together with realisation of cost
efficiencies and synergy benefits from the
creation of CFS.
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Credit quality and provisions

The Profit and Loss charge for bad debts of
£62.8 million was £0.5 million lower than last
year despite the growth in lending balances.
Additional bad debt provisions in respect

of specific Corporate bad debts were more
than offset by lower Personal and general
provisions. The bad debt charge as a
percentage of year end Loans and Advances
1o customers was 0.82%, an improvemant

of 0.21 percentage points compared to 2003
Personal sector bad debt charges decreased
by £3.8 million reflecting an improvement

in the credit quality in much of the Perscnall
sector portfolic. including personal loans and
averadrafts. and martgage balances in arrears
remained at a very low level. This improvement
was partially offset by higher charges against
the credit card portfolio.

The Personal sector bad debt charge
represented 1.0% of average balances,

an improverment of 0.8 percentage points
compared to the previcus year reflecting the
improved quality of the loan portfolio. This
resulted from the combination of the sirong
growth of secured, good quality mortgage
balances and the continued adoption of a
cautious and responsible lending policy.
The Bank operates tight credit policy over
new business through behavioural scoring
and monitors overall debt for existing
custorners to enable early action to manage
over indebtedness.

Bad and Doubtful Debt Charge 2004 2003 Change
£m £m £Em

Profit and Loss Charge

Personal Sector 53.4 57.2 (3.8

Corporate Sector 9.4 8.1 33

Total 62.8 63.3 {0.5)

Charge as a percentage of Loans

and Advances to Customers 0.82% 1.03% {0.21%
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The Bank's Corperate and Business portfolio
is weighted towards small and medium-sized
businesses. Credit quality in that sector remains
stable with low bad debt charges in recent
years. The Bark has continued with its strategy
of reducing expasure ko higher risk sectors and
consequently the number of problem accounts
i1s low. However, in realising this sirategy a
small number of significant additional specific
provisions have been raised and as a result
the Corporate sector bad debt charges have
increased by £3.3 million to a total of £9.4
million. Despite the increase in the charge

and due to the overail quality of the portfolio
the bad debt charge represents cnly 0.5% of
average Corporate balances, compared ta
0.3% last year.

The Bank's lending growth was biased

in favour of lower-risk, secured mortgage
balances, which tend to incur lower bad debts
than unsecured lending. Although there

are early signs that consumer contidence is
weakening in the face of rising interest rates
and indications of a slowdown in the housing
market. asset quality remains strong and
the Bank's credit assessment processes are
sufficiently robust to deal with a potential
downturn in credit quality in the UK.

Summary

The Co-operative Bank has achieved a
moderate growth in profit during a period of
intense competition manifested in narrowing
margins and slower balance sheet growth.
Although the Bank continues 10 support

CFS in its development as a leading financial
services provider, opportunities to deliver
further cost savings and synergies will,
inevitably, be reduced in the next year as

CIS focuses attention on a significant
restructuring and change programme. In the
meantime, the Bank is developing its retail
strategy and considering further opportunities
for longer term cost efficiencies which are
likely to require up-front investrment. These
development programmes, combined with
strong capital rates, should ensure that The
Co-operative Bank is well placed to compete
in an increasingly challenging UK financial
services market.




Risk management.

The Bank takes a balanced view of risk and actively
monitors all relevant activity accordingly.

Risk Management Framework

The Board is responsible for approving the
Bank's strategy, its principal markets and the
level of acceptable risks. The Board has
established Board Committees and Exacutive
Management Committees to administer a risk
management process which identifies the key
risks facing the business and reviews reports
submitted to those Committees on how those
risks are being managed. Specific authority
has been delegated to Becard Committees
and the Chief Executive who may, in turn,
delegate elements of his discretions to
appropriate Executive Directors and their
senior line managers.

Risk Management Structure

| Bank Board |

! Advances Committee I CF8
Audit & Risk Committee

1

Executive Risk
Review Committee

Credit Asset & Liabilty |  Risk Management
Comrrittee Commiltee Committee
Credit Risk Interest Rate Risk  All Significant Risks

Advances Committee is a Board sub-
committee, chaired by a non-executive director.
It assesses and approves transactions that
axceed the delegated authority of the Chief
Execulive and reviews key features of the loan
porticlios and related credit strategy.

CF$ Audit & Risk Committee is a CFS Board
sub-committee, chaired by a non-executive
director. It also supports the Bank Board in
carrying out its responsibilities for internal
control and risk assessment. The Committee
moenitors the ongoing process of the
identification, evaluation and management

of all significant risks across the Bank and
provides an independent review of rigk

management and controis. The Committes is
supported by Group Internal Audit and Risk
Management functicns.

The Bank’s Executive Risk Review Committes,
comprising Executive Directors, the Chief
Executive and Chief Operating Officer,
continued to meet in 2004. The Terms of
Reference include the maintenance of the
Risk Management Palicy, the identification
and evaluation of risks and the provision

of agsurance to the Board and Audit & Risk
Committee. Regular risk and cantrol
assessments are provided by line management
tothe Risk Committee in respect of the Bank’s
significant risks.

Risk Management Committee comprisas a
minimum of two Bank Executive Directors. the
CFS Risk & Compliance Director and the
Director of Risk Management, along with risk
managers responsible for specific types of rigk
within the Bank. The Commitiee advises both
the Bank’s Executive Risk Review Committee
and the Beard Audit & Risk Committee.

Credit Committee is chaired by the CFS Risk
& Compliance Director and includes the Bank’s
Credit Risk & Compliance Management
Director. The Chair has delegated authority for
approving credit facilities, managing lending
discretions and credit strategy.

Asset & Liability Committee (ALCO)

is chaired by the Chief Executive. It is primarily
responsible for managing the interest rate

risk inherentin the Bank's asset and liability
portfolio, liquidity and capital adequacy.

The Bank’s significant risks arise in four broad
categories. -

+ Credil Risk

+ Market Risk

+ Liquidity Risk

+ Operational Risk
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Credit Risk arises from the possibility of
customers and counterparties failing 1o meet
their obligations ta the Bank and represents
the most significant category of risk.

The Credit Risk Management Policies ars
approved by the Board annually and determine
the criteria for the management of personal,
corporate and wholesale market exposures.
They specify credit management standards,
including country, sector and counterparty
limits, along with delegated authorities. Larger
corporate facilities are sanctioned by the
Board’s Advances Committee who also
review, each month, facilities granted within
the Chief Executive's discretion.

The Group's personal lending poticy is to
establish credit criteria which determine the
optimum balance between volume growth
(generating higher income) and higher bad
debts, 50 as to maximise overall profitability.
Personal lending is tightly controlled thraugh
advanced credit and behavioural scoring
techniques administered by a specialist
department. The Board receive reguiar reports
on the performance of the portfolio.

The Group's corporate sector policy is to
maintain a broad sectoral spread of exposures
which reflect the Group's areas of expertise.
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Financial instruments
are essential to the
Group’s activities.

Credit exposures to corporate and business
banking customers are assessed individually.
The quality of the overall porifciio is menitored,
using a credit grading system calibrated to
the probability of incurring fosses. All aspacts
of credit management arg controlled centrally.
The Board receives regular reports on new
facilities and changes in facilities, seclor
exposures, bad debt provisions and the
realisation of problern loans.

Credit policy for wholesale market counterparties
involves establishing limits for each of these
counterparties based on their financiat strength
and credit rating. Counterparty limits ara largely
uncommitted. All counterparties are reviewed at
least annually by the Treasury Credit Department
and the counterparty list is also reviewed
annually by the Board’s Advances Committee.

Market Rigk arises from the effect of changes
in market prices of financial instruments, on
income derived from the structure of the balance
sheet, execution of customer and inter-bank
business and pregrietary trading. The majority
of the risk arises from changes in interest
rates as the Bank does not trade in equities
or commodities and has limited foreign
currency activities.

Interest Rate Risk Policy Statements, approved
by the Audit & Risk Committee on behalf of

the Board, specify the scope of the Bank's
wholesale market activity, market risk limits and
delegated authorities. The policy is executed
by the Bank's ALCO whose Chairman has
been delegated authority by the Chiet
Executive. ALCO meets monthly and its prime
task is to assess the interest rate risk inherent
in the maturity and re-pricing characteristics of
the Group's assets and liabilities. It sets limits
within which Treasury and the Bank's Asset and
Liability Management department manage the
effect of interest rate changes on the Bank's
overall netinterest income. The principal
anatytical technigues invoive assessing the
impact of different interest rate scenarios and
changes in balances over various time periods.

Treasury executes funding and hedging
transactions with the wholesale markets on
behalf of the Bank and its customers. I also
generates incremental income from propriatary
trading within strict risk limits. There are two
prime measures of risk supplemented by
additional controls such as maturity and stop
loss lirmits. Risk units express the various
re-pricing and maturity mismatches as a
common unit of measurement. Value at Risk
{VaR) measures the daily maximum potential




gain or loss due to recent market volatility to
a statistical confidence leve! of 95% and uses
250 days of historical data and a one day
holding period. During 2004, the daily VaR

in the frading portfolios was less than £1.3
million. The YaR methodology has inherent
limitations in that market volatility in the past
may not be a reliable predictor of the future,
and may not refiect the time reguired to hedges
or dispose of the position, hence VaR is not
used by the Bank as the scle measure of rigk.
The Beard receive quarterly reports on the
management of Balance Sheet risk and, each
month, ALCCO reviews the Balance Sheet risk
position and the utilisation of wholesale market
rigk limits.

in 2004 Treasury Risk Management introduced
PVG1 as an additicnal risk measure to
supplement VYaR. This risk measure is based
upon a full revaluation and indicates the
change in value of a fixed income product,

or portfolio, given a 1 basis point moverment

in interest rates.

Liquidity Risk arises from the timing of
cashflows generated from the Group's assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments.
Treasury manages the Group's liquidity
within guidelines laid down by ALCO and in
accordance with standards established for
all banks by banking regulators. Short-term
liquidity standards ensure the Group can
always meet its obligalions without recourse
to the wholesale markets for at least the next
five working days.

The Group's liquidity management policies
are reviewed and approved annually by the
Audit & Risk Committee and reviewed monthly
by ALCO.

Operational Risk arisas from the potential
for key systems failures, breaches in internal
controls or from external events resulting in
financial loss or reputational damage. Key
operational risks include cutsourced contracts,
payment systems and information systerns,
Operational risk is controiled and mitigated
through comprehensive, ongeing risk
management practices which include formal
internal control pracedures, training, segregation
of duties. delegated authcrities and contingancy
planning. The Internal Audit Department conduct
a programme of operational reviews and report
regularly to Executive Directors and to the Audit
& Risk Commitlee.

The Executive Directors are responsible for
controlling the operating risks within their direct
areas of accountability and for compliance
with Group policies, which are extensively
documented in Procedures Manuals.

Basel Il (Capital Requirements Directive) is
an internationally agreed framewark for
banking regulation and capital management.
The FSA plan to introduce these new
standards and implementation requirements
over the forthcoming year in preparation for
parailel running in 2006 and the introduction
of the new regulations in January 2007. The
Basel [l programme is a key risk management
development far the Bank in 2005.

Financial Instruments

The use of Financial Instrurents is essential
to the Group's business activities and financial
instruments constitute a significant proportion
of the Group's assets and liabilities. Risk
rmanagement procedures are described earlier
in this report, and analysis of the financial
instruments is provided in the Notes to the
Finangial Statements. The main financial
instruments used by the Group, and the
purposes for which they are held, are
outlined below:

Customer Loans and Deposits The
provision of banking facilities to customers is
the prime activity of the Group and customer
lcans and deposits are major constituents of
the balance sheet. The Group has detailed
policies and procedures 1o manage risks.

In addition to mortgage lending, much of the
lending to corporate and business banking
customers is also secured.

Debt Securities, Wholesale Market Loans
and Deposits The Group issues medium term
notes within an established Euro Medium Term
Note programme and also issues Certificates
of Deposit and Commercial Paper as part of
its normal Treasury activities. These sources of
funds alongside wholesale market loans are
invested in marketable, investment grade debt
securities, short-term wholesale market
placements and used to fund customer ipans.
Debt securities alse underpin the Group’s
liquidity requirerments and generate incremental
net interest and trading income.

Capital funds - Subordinated Note issues
and Preference Shares The Grouphasa
policy of maintaining prudent capital ratios and
utilises a broad spread of capital funds. In
addition to ordinary share capital and retained
earnings, the Group has issued £60 million
Preference shares and, when appropriate,
also issues perpetual and fixed term
Suberdinated Notes.

Foreign Exchange The Group undertakes
foreign exchange dealing to facilitate customer
reguirements and o generate incremental
income from short-term trading in the major
currencies. Structured risk and trading related
risk are managed formally within position limits
approved by the Beard.

Derivatives A derivative is an off-balance
sheet financial instrument that derives its value
from an underlying rate or price such as
interest rates, exchange rates and other market
prices. Derivatives are an efficient means of
maraging rmarket risk and fimiting counterparty
exposure. The Bank uses them mainly for
hedging purposes and to meet the needs

of custamers.

The most frequently used derivative contracts
are interest rate swaps. exchange traded
futures and options, caps and floors, forward
rate agreements, currency swaps and forward
currency transactions. Terms and conditions
are determined by using standard industry
documentation. Derivatives are subject to the
same market and credit risk contrel procedures
as are applied tc other wholesale market
instruments and are aggregated with other
exposures to monitor total counterparty
exposure which is managed within approved
limits for each counterparty.
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Specific arrangements
are made for developing
safe working practice.




Health and safety policy.

The health and safety policy for
the Bank is managed by its parent
organisation, CFS.

CFS. including the Bank, ensures that all
reasonable steps are taken to:
+ Safeguard the health, safety and welfare of
all members of stalf whilst ihey are at work.
* Protect all non-employees from any potential
hazard created by CFS operations.
Specific arrangements are made within each
business area for developing safe working
practice, allocating the required resources
and ensuring suitable and sutficient training
for all employees.

Consultation and involvement of
employees and safety representatives
CESrecognises the need 1o consult with its
employees on health and safety issues and
the rights of individuals and Trades Unions
in respect of this. Accredited safety
representatives will be afforded every
opportunity 1o effect this consultation and

Formal consultation arrangements with
ali unions exist through the Health and
Safety Committee.

Health and safety issues are brought to the
attention of all employees through business
specific communication channels, and
employees are similarly encouraged to raise
issues through their line management.

Accident statistics

The table below shows the total number of
accidents causing personal injury to
employees during the year by business area,
together with incidence rate expressed as the
number of accidents per 100 full time equivalent
employees (FTEs). Incidence rate is caiculated
as follows:

No of accidents x 100

to receive training as appropriate from their Noof FTEs
Trade Union.

Business Area Number of accidents  Number of statutorily  Incldence rate
to ermployees, reportable accidents  ofaccidents per
contractors and 100 FTEs
vigitors

Co-operatve Bank 79 (all to staff) 1 203

CIS 467 {443 to staff) 57 5.20

CFS 546 {522 (o staff) 58 421

Fatal accidents
There were no fatal accidents within CFS
in2004.

Enforcement action on CFS

During the reporting year no enforcement
notices were issued against the organisation
by any of the enforcing authorities.

Convictions for health and safety offences
Mo proceedings were instigated against CFS
for breaches of health and safety regulations
within the reporting period.

Health and safety training

CFSis committed to ensuring that all
employees receive adequate training in health
and safety to make them aware of their
individual responsibilities and to enable them
to carry out their work tasks without injury or
damage to heaith of themselves or others
affected by their work. All employees on
commencing employment with any business
area receive induction training, which includes
basic health and safety requiraments, such
as fire action, accident reporting, first aid
arrangements etc. Training is then provided
in respect of heaith and safety issues
associated with specific tasks through line
management, dedicated training, or health
and safety personnel.
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Statement on social,
ethical and
environmental risks.

Shareholdars Customers

Staff

Suppliers

Introduction

CFS, including the Bank, recognises the need
to develop its business in a sustainable
manner. CFS has identified six groups, or
Partners, upon whom its continued success is,
to varying degrees, dependent {as described
in its Sustainabie Development Policy that can
be found in the separate Sustainability Report
for CFS, Bank and CIS produced later in the
first half of 2005). CFS has established a
world-class reputation with regard ta the
management and reperting of the degree to
which it delivers value to its Partners in an
ecologically sustainable and socially
responsible manner, The CFS Sustainability
Report 2003 emerged as ‘number one’ in the
biennial glcbal benchmark of sustainability
reporting commissionad by the United Nations
Environment Pragramme. In 2005, it was
declared the best in the UK at the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants UK Awards
for Sustainability Reporting 2004,
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Significant risks

The following ethical and sustainability issues
have been identified as being most material
to the business of the Bank (j.e. those risks
determined to be potentially material to the
shert and long term valug of the business).

Empioyee weifare

Recognising the fundamental importance of
staff to business performance. CFS has taken
care to continue 1o invest in its employees.
Work in the area of Health and Safety and Well-
being was reconciled across the Bank and CIS
in 2004 with the launch of new CFS policies.

The new Health and Satety policy was
underpinnad by the development of a CFS
Health and Safety Commitiee; and, in order to
ensure that cccupational health services are
delivered in a more consistent manner, these
will be cutsourced in 2005. Supporting the new
Weil-being policy will be the provision of an
external counselling service for all CFS staff.

In 2005, a CFS Work/Life Balance poficy will
he developed, to reconcile and imprave on
existing Bank and CIS policies, and staff
learning and devetopment initiatives will be
progressed.

Society

Financial solvency

One of the prime respensibilities of the Bank
is to make sure it is financially secure and can
meet its obligations as and when required.
Capital is maintained in connection with the
various risks the Bank is exposed to, ensuring
that depositors are protected against any
foreseeable loss incurred. The capital required
is governed by the FSA: however, itis the
Bank's policy t¢ hold more than the regulatory
minimum. The capital adequacy policy is set
and monitored cn a menthly basis by the Asset
and Liability Committee (ALCO). Related risks
within the Bank are detailed in the risk
management section on pages 23 to 25

A second policy, which focuses on financial
security, ensures that sufficient funds are
available at all tirmes {(excluding unforeseen
and extreme situations) to meet demands from
depositors to fund agreed advances and to
meget other commitments as and when they fall
due. The liquidity risk policy is set by the Bank's
ALCG and moenitered on a daily basis by the
Treasury department.




Customer service

CFS' Sustainability Report describes customer
satisfaction with service across all key products
and services, with independent research
indicating that CFS customers are more
satisfied than the industry average in most
major product classes.

Effective cusiomer service is needed to ensure
that customer retention and growth arein line
with plans. 77% of Bank staff are now involved
in custamer-facing activities, an increase from
75% last year, and this has a major impact on
thinking and culture across the organisation.
In 2004, investment focused on four key areas:
call centres, branches, the Internet and ATMs.
Branch refurbishments during 2004 have
prioritised compliance with the new Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA} regulations, which
came into force on 1st October.

CFS has recognised that outsourcing, and
indeed insourcing, has a place inbusiness
organisation discussions; however, the Bank
and CIS have pledged not to outsource
customer-facing jobs as these are considered
to be core to a high quality service offering.

Ethical Policy compliance

The Co-cperative Bank launched its Ethical
Policy in 1992, and this was subsequently
reviewed in 1995, 1998 and 2001. The Ethical
Policy stipulates who the Bank will and will
not finance, as directed by customers. This
is supperted by the CFS Sustainable
Development Team. As of 2002, the Bank has
provided a detailed annual breakdown of all
instances where business has baen declined,

most recently in the CFS Sustainability Repaort.

CFS’ sustainability auditors, justassurance,
directly investigate, on a sample basis, the
veracity of policy implementation; reviewing
case files and assuring themselves of the
integrity of the process and outcome.
Furthermore, Ethical Policy implementation
is subject 1o an annual internal audit review.

2004 branch refurbishments
prioritised compliance

with the new Disability
Discrimination Act (DDA)

regulations.

Statutory and regulatory
compliance/industry codes of conduct
The Bank is authcrised and regulated by the
Financial Services Autherity {FSA) and
subscribes to the Banking Code and Business
Banking Code. The Bank subscribed to the
Mortgage Code and the General Insurance
Standards Council Codeg prior to the statutory
reguiation of mortgages and general insurance
by the FSA iIn November 2004 and January
2005 respectively. In 2004, the Banking Code
Standards Board (BCSB) and the Mortgage
Code Compliance Board carried out reviews
of compliance against their codes within the
Bank. The reviews confirmed satisfactory
compliance with the code's requirements, with
na further actions required. In 2004, the BCSB
also undertook a mystery shopping exercise to
determine the extent to which the 16 providers
of basic Bank accounts are fulfilling their
responsibilities under the Banking Code. The
Bank was one of only six banks to be graded
‘green’ {the highest ranking} in the survey,
indicating that arrangements for the sale of
basic bank accounts are satisfactory and that
any areas of weakness are relatively minar.
The Bank has an appointed Code Compliance
Officer who liaises closely with the relevant
regulatory bodies.
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During 2004, the BCSB resolved that the Bank
had materially breached paragraph 4.1(e) of
the Banking Code, by giving an incorrect
angwer in its Annual Statement of Compliance
questionnaire for the year ended 31st
Decermber 2003. This was identified by the
Bank and subseguently notified to the

BCSB, who agreed that the incorrect answer
was given in good faith and regarded the
Bank's notification ta them as a strength of
self-regulation.

The FSA’s rules governing anti-money
laundering activities are described in the
Money Laundering Sourcebook. Additionally,
the Joint Money Laundering Steering Group
pravides practicai guidance for the financial
sector via money laundering guidance notes
{most recently in December 2003). During
2004, the Bank made a significant investment
in a project to implement a new anti-maney
laundering solution that will systematically and
intelligently menitor its customer accounts and
daily transactions in order to fusther automate
the detection of unusual behaviour.

Key suppliers and outsourcing

Effective contract and relationship managerment
is required for key suppliers and outsourcing in
order to assure service provision and financial
performance. CFS' Sustainability Report
describes performance {together with
benchmarking) in the areas of ‘prompt
payment’, ‘good relationships', 'fair treatment’
and ‘effective communication'. It also details
the development of a new CFS Outsourcing
Policy in 2004 and the contract areas falling
under FSA guidance. The Qutsourcing Palicy
outlings best practice for general outsourcing
arrangements, but is considered mandatory
for all material outsourcing arrangements
(defined as those instances where a weakness
or failure on the part of the service provider
would reduce availability of a CFS critical service
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to below 50% for over four hours, or result in an
unexpected cost in excess of £500,000). Arisk
assessment is undertaken quarterly as pant of 2
tormal review of each outsourcing contract, and
this is submitted to the respective Bank Risk
Management committee. Also in 2004, a
Sustainable Procurement and Sugplier Policy
was agreed for CFS. This is supported by the
CFS Sustainable Development Team and the
CFS Sustainability Steering Committee. In
parallel, a CFS-wide Supplier Acguisition and
Management (SAM) Poficy was agreed, with
implementation proceeding across CFS
through the first balf of 2005. The Policy is
designed to allow CFS to pool its supplier
intelligence. maximise buying potential and
to reduce risk by ensuring that business
arrangements are documented to a consistent
standard. The SAM Policy is supported by CFS
Procurement and Supplier Management and
a SAM Steering Group, and covers spend in
excess of £50,000 and/or business crilical
goods and services.

Governance
The Bank can confirm the following:

* The Board receives quarterly progress
reports on ethical and sustainability matters,
and the degree to which they impact on the
business and Partners at large. In addition,
the Board approves the CFS Sustainability
Report; which describes the degree to
which CFS delivers value to its Partners
in an ecologically sustainable and socially
responsible manner. Uniess otherwise
stated, the Report is considered to be a
complete commentary on CFS' material,
ethical and sustainability impacts. The Report
also details some 70 targets; these in part
seek 1o be responsive to stakeholders' views
on performance expectation.

* The Board has identified and assessed the
significant risks to the business arising from
social, ethical and environmental matters via
the risk management process described on
pages 23 to 25. CFS operates a cenlral risk
register containing some 500 risks and
associated internal controls. In addition, the
Bank and CIS operate separate significant
risk registers. on which all of the above
issues are referenced.

.

CFS has established a Sustainable
Development Policy, and a rigorous system
of stakeholder engagement, management
and reporting, and this is consistant with
the AAT000 management framework, as
described in its Sustainability Report. The
CFS Sustainability Repert, and underlying
accounting systems and management
controls, is subject to rigorous third party
assurance as per AA1000as. CFS considers
it vital that social, ethical and environmentai
issues are identified on the basis that they
are material to Partners' concerns, and not
only on the basis of the degree to which they
impact on the ‘botiom-line’ of the business.
Ta this end, the CFS Sustainabifity Report
describes a much broader set of ethical and
sustainability impacts than those assigned
via the ABI guidelines.
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The Co-operative Bank Board

Non-Executive Directors:

Graham Bennett Age 54. Chair of The Co-operative Bank plc. Occupation — Chiet Executive Officer and Secretary, Southern
Co-operatives. Non-Executive Director of the Co-operative Group. Co-operative Financial Services Limited and
Co-pperative Insurance Society Limited. First elected to the Bank Board in 1889

Martin Beaumont Age 55. Deputy Chair. Occupation — Chief Executive, the Co-operative Group. Non-Executive Director of
Cao-operative Financial Services Limited and Co-operative Insurance Society Limited, First elected to the Bank
Board in 1986.

Bob Burkton Age 56. Occupation - Chief Executive. Oxford. Swindon & Gloucester Society. Chair of the Co-operative Group

and Co-operative Financial Services Limited. Non-Executive Director of Co-operative Insurance Society Limited.
First elected {6 the Bank Board in 2004,

Simon Butler Age 50. Occupation —Teacher. Member of the Co-operative Group Central & Eastern Regional Board. Chair of
Co-operative Insurance Socisty Limited. Non-Executive Director of the Co-operative Group and Deputy Chair of
Co-operative Financial Services Limited. First elected to the Bank Board in 2003

David Davies Age 57 Senior Independent Director. Ocoupation — Independent Prafessional Non-Executive Director, Also
holds this position on the Beards of Co-operative Financial Services Limited and Co-cperative Insurance Society
Limited. He is Chairman of Sun Life Assurance Company of Canada (UK) Limited. First elected to the Bank
Beard in 2003.

Tony Lancaster Age 62 Occupation - Independent Professional Non-Exacutive Director Also helds this position on the Boards
of Co-operative Financial Services Limited and Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. Previously Chair and
Chief Executive of Groupama Insurance Company from 1991 until his retirement in 2002, First efected to the
Bank Board in 2004.

Kathryn Smith Age 45. Occupation - Public Affairs Consultant. Member of the Co-operative Group South East Regional Board
Non-Executive Director of the Co-operative Group and Co-operative Financial Services Limited. First elected to
the Bank Beard in 2001

@Graham Stow Age 80. Occupation - Independent Professional Non-Executive Director. Also hoids this position on the Boards
of Co-operative Financial Services Limitect and Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. Previously Geoup Chief
Executive of Britannia Building Scciety from 1899 until 2003, First elected to the Bank Board in 2003

Executive Directors:
Paul Hewitt Age 48. Acting Chief Executive. Also Acting Chief Executive of Ca-operative Financial Services Limited and

Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. First appointed to the Bank Board in 2003 as a Non-Executive Director in
his role as Chief Financial Officer of the Ce-operative Group.

Richard Goddard Age 47. Executive Director. Finance and Rigk. First appointed to the Bank Board in 2002,

Sheila Macdonald Age 57. Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer. Also Executive Director of Co-operative Financial Services
Limited, First appointed to the Bank Board in 1999,

John Marper Age 58, Executive Director. Risk & Compliance of Co-operative Financial Services Limited. First appointed to the Bank,
Boardin 1989

John Reizenstein Age 48. Executive Director. Finance and Actuarial of Co-operative Financial Services Limited. Also Executive
Director of Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. First appointed to the Bank Board in 2004

Craig Shannon Age 41. Executive Director. Marketing of Co-operative Financial Services Limited. Also Executive Director of
Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. First appointed to the Bank Board in 2004

Peter Sutcliffe Age 57. Executive Director. Retail Banking Business Management. First appeinted to the Bank Board in 2003.
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Report of the Board of Directors

The Directors submit their repart, together with the audited financial statements. for the year ended 8 January 2005.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Bank and its subsidiary undertakings provide an extensive range of banking and financial senvices. in the United Kingdom.

A review of the performance of the Bank and its operating subsidiarigs together with future developments are set out on pages 15t 22 in the
Operating and Financial Review section of this report. Note 15 of the financial statements provides details of the principal subsidiaries.

Outlets
At 8 January 2005 the Bank had 126 outlets and 100 Handybanks (instore facilities).

Changes to the Board

The names of the present members of the Board and their biographies and details of length of service are set out on page 32.

Bob Burlton was appointed as a Non-Executive Director on 30 March 2004,

Keith Darwin. Non-Executive Director. served on the Board until his retirement on 23 May 2004.

Tony Lancaster was appointed as an Independent Professional Non-Executive Director on 27 May 2004

John Reizenstein, Executive Director, Finance and Actuarial of CFS and Craig Shannon. Executive Director, Marketing of CFS were appointed to the Board
on 14 September 2004,

Paul Hewitt. an existing Non-Executive Director on the Beard. was appointed Acting Chief Executive fellowing Sir Mervyn Pedelty's retirement from the
Board as Chiet Executive with effect from 15 December 2004. The Boardis actively considering recruitment to the position,

Electlon of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association. Tony Lancaster. Craig Shannon and John Reizenstein, having been appointed since the date of the last
Annual General Meeting. retire and being eligible. offer themselves for re-appointment at the next Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Graham Bennett. Richare! Gaddard and John Marper retire by rotation and, being eligible. cffer themselves
for re-election. None of the Directors offering themselves for re-glection have service contracts with the Bank or any of its subsidiary undertakings which
has a duration of more than one year.

All Directors up for re-appointment and re-election continue to demanstrate commitment to their reles (see schedule of attendance on page 38).

The Notice for the Annual General Meeting at which the Directors will be re-elected can be found on page 84.

Results and Dividends

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation was £132.0 million {2003-£130.1 million). an increase of £1.9 million on 2003. After preference dividends of
£5.5 million. the prcfit attributable to the ordinary shareholders amounted 1o £84,7 million. An interim dividend of £15 millicn was paid on 30 November
2004 1o the ordinary shareholders. The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of £5 mitlion on 31 May 2005 on the ordinary shares and
£64.7 miliion will be added to reserves.

A more detailed review of the business is contained in the Operating and Financial Review on pages 1510 22

The Bank is part of the Co-operative Group and in 2004 the Group successfully returned over £8 million of profits to its members. This was a flat payment of
£10. made to members who had bought qualifying goods or services from the Group's consumer businesses in the previous year.

In 2005 the Co-operative Group will offer a share of its profits to members linked to the value of trade each member did with its customer facing businesses
in 2004, including the Bank. Work is underway 1o develop a card-based membership solution that will be taunched to the Group's members in 2008,

Direstors and their interests
No Director had a material interest at any time dusing the year in any contract of significance, other than a service contract, with the Bank or any of its

subsidiary underakings.
The Directors” interests in the Bank's 9.25% £1 preference shares were as follows.
Number of Shares
2004 2003
John Marper 11.042 11.042

No other Director had a beneficial interest in any shares in the Group or in the Co-operative Group which is the ultimate holding organisation. or in any other
companies controlled by the Co-operative Group.

There have been no changes in the Directors' shareholdings between the end of the financial year and 7 April 2005

Statf

The Bank and ils subsidiary undertakings employed 4,300 perscns at 8 January 2005 (2003 - 4.237). The weekly average number of persons was 4,356
(2003 - 4.310) and their aggregate remuneraticn for the year was £98.2 million (2003 - £95 5 millton).

The Bank aperales learning and development initiatives across the organisation as part of a continuous improvement programme. supporting its
approach 10 performance management, personal development and succession planning.

The Bank continues to consult and communicate with staff on customer, organisation and tusiness performance issues. using staff publications. surveys.
canferences. videos. and forums with Amicus-UNIFL who continue to be fully involved with the Bank where organisational change and other issues affect staff
through the Partnership Agresment. The Bank has been acknowledged as being one of the "Best Places to Work” in the UK. and as an “Investor in People”.
Diversity

The Bank welcomes diversity and actively promotes a policy and practice of equality of opportunity in employment for all employees. regardless of sex.
gender reassignment. marital status. sexual orientation. colour. race and nationality. naticnal or ethaic origin. religion or creed. disability. responsibility for
dependants. age. membership or non membership of a trade union or political affiliation
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Employees with Disabilities

The Bank is a member of the Employers’ Forum on Disability. which provides advice and guidance on the employment of people with disabiiities. The Bankis a
halder of the Paositive about Disabled People' symbol. a recognition given by Jobcentre Plus to employers who have agreed to meet five commitments
regarding the recruitment, employment, retention and career development of disabled people. The Bank has an Equal Opporiunities Policy. which includes
provisions to consider employment applications from people with disagilities and to match vacancies with an individual's particufar aptitudes and abilities
Additionally. it has produced bespoke Disability Discrimination Act guidance for staff, which outlines its responsivilities with respect to the employment of
people with disabitities. Further guidance and information for staff on disability issues is available through Human Resources and on the staff intraret. The
Bank recognises its responsibility for making reasonable adjustments’ for rew staff wilh disabilities and for those individuals who develop disabilities whilstin
empioyment. The views of disabled pecple are sought through the annual staff survey. which includes special provisions to gather informiation relating 1o
potential incidences of bullying and harassment in the workplace.

Corporate Responsibility and the Environment

The Bank's corporate responsibility activities are outlined on pages 12 and 13 The Company's Statement on Social, Ethical and Environmental Risks can
be taund on pages 28 to 30. In addition. the CFS Sustainability Report. which will be published towards the latter half of the 2005 financial year. describes
how CFS. CIS and the Bank manage their social. ethical and environmental impacts.

Donations

During the year, the Bank and its subsidiaries made donations (which excludes affinity card payments) of £0.6 million (2003 - £0.5 million} to United
Kingdom charitable organisations. Additional costs associated with the Bank's community involvement are provided within the CFS Sustainability Report
Itis the Bank's policy that ne donations are made for political purposes.

Supplier Payment Policy and Practice

The Bank's suppliers are one of sixgroups it recognises as Partners inits business. each of whom has clear responsibilities to the Bark. which inturr
acknowledges its responsibilities ta them. The Bank considers that the prompt payment of invoices is one of its responsibilities te its suppliers and is a signatory
to the Better Payment Practice Code. Signatories to the code gromise to agree payment lerms at the outset of a relationship. explain their payment procedures o
suppliers. pay bills in accardance with any contract agreed with the supplier. or as required by law. tell suppliers without delay when an invoice is contestéed and
settle disputes quickly. Bank palicy on supglier payment is compliant with the provisions of the Late Payment Act which became effective in August 2002. The
Bank had 16 days {2003 —19 days) purchases outstanding at 8 January 2005. based on the average daily amount invoiced by suppliers during the financial year.

International Financial Reporting Standards

The Bank has continued s preparation for the introduction of International Financial Reponting Standards (FRS) across ail areas of the business to ensure
that IFRS compliant financial statements for the year endingt4 January 2006 can be produced. including results for the halt year ending 23 July 2005. which
will be published in the third quarter of 2005.

Progress reports and impact assessments have besn provided o the Board, Audit & Risk Committes and Executive Committees. A training programme

has been used to spread knowledge and understanding of IFRS across the organisation. All IFRS and their impacts have been reviewed and the most
significant are:

The Co-aperative Bank p Lo

IFRS/IAS| Description of changes Impact on Profit before Impact on shareholders’
tax tunds

1AS32 The Bank's preference shares will be classified as a liability rather than aquity | Beduction Reduction

1AS12 Accounting for pension assets and liabitities within the Bank balance sheet Reduction Reduction

1A539 Income recognition for loans and deposits on an effective yield basis No material change No material change

1AS39 Loan provisioning on a discounted cash flow basis Increased bad debt charges | Reduction
and increased interest
recevable

1AS39 All derivatives must be stated at fair value Ne material change

Dependent on market rates

The project team has continued to work with other interested parties. in particular the BBA, to identify and tackle IFRS implementation issues and the
project is currently proceeding to plan

Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the financial statements
Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank

and of the group and of the profit or loss for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to!

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
* make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed. subject to any material departures disclosed and explained inthe financial statements:

*« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unlsss it is inappropriate to presume that the Company and the group will continug in business.
The Directors are responsible for maintaining proper accounting reccrds which disclose. with reasonable accuracy at any time. the financial position of the
Bank and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 1985, They have general responsibility for taking such
steps as are reasonably open 10 them o safeguard the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregularities.

Auditor

in accordance with Section 385 of the Companies Act 1985, a resalution far the re-appointment of KPMG Audit Plc as auditor of the Bank and a resolution
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration are to be proposed at the next Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board.

Moira Lees. Secretary.

7 Apnl 2005
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The Co operative Bank pl.c

Statement of Corporate Governance

UK Combined Code on Corperate Governance

In July 2003. the Financial Reporting Coungil in the UK issued the revised Combined Cade ('the Code’} on Corporate Govermance. which superseded and
replaced the Combined Gode published by the Hampel Committee on Corparate Governance in 1998, it applies for reporting years beginning on or after 1
Novemnber 2003

In the 2003 Annual Repart it was noted that during 2004 a full review would be undertaken of the new provisions of the Combined Code for both Higgs and
Smith Reports. i particular to follow the guiding principle of ‘comply or expfain’. A warking party was set up with the objective of reviewing each of the
provisions setout in the new Code. Steps have since been taken to ensure that the Bank is in compliance with those provisions as at the date of this Report. and
to ensure that an explanation in respect of non-compiiance is provided. This Corporate Governance report explains how the Bank has applied the principles in
the new Code and the extent to which compliance has been achieved.

The Co-operative Bank Board

The Directors believe that it is essential that the Company should be led and controlled by an efiective Board. The Board is responsible for the success of the
Company within a framewark of controfs, which enables risk to be assessed and managed. It is responsible for setting strategy. maintaining the policy and
decision making framework in which this strategy is implemented. ensuring that the necessary financial and human resources are in place to meet strategic
aims. monitoring performance against key financial and non-financial indicators, overseeing the system of risk management and for setting valugs and
standards ingovemance matters,

The responsibility of the Bank Board is to direct the business of the Bank. and in particular to:

+  ensure that the Company's affairs are conducted and managed in accordance with its Memorandum and Articles of Association. and in accordance with
the best interests of its stakeholders within the ethics and values of co-aperative principles:

+ agree objectives. policies and strategies. and monitor executive management;

= determine the vision and strategy of the Company in consultation with the Chief Executive and the Executive;

= approve the annual budget and business plan;

+  approve the reported financial statements and dividends;

+  monitor. through various Committees. the key significant risks facing the Company

* establish Board Committees; and

*  approve the delegated financial autherities.

The Board manages these matters at its regular Board meetings and strategy meetings. Oetalls of attendance are noted on page 38. It has met twelve times in
2004. The: Board is scheduled to meet for ten Board meetings and two strategy meetings in 2005,

Board Balance and Independence

The Board comprises eight Non-Executive Directors and seven Executive Directors. Paul Hewitt held a pesition of Non-Executive Director in his capacity as the
Chief Financial Officer of the Co-operative Group urtil the retirement of Sir Menyn Pedelty, the former Chief Execulive. with effect from 15 December 2004,
whereupon Paul Hewitt was appointed Acting Chief Executive

The Board has appointed three Independent Professional Non-Executive Directors as defined under the Combined Code; David Davies. Tony Lancaster and
Graham Stow.

The Code requites at least half of the Board. excluding the Chair, to be independeant non-executive directors.

In accordance with the Code. it is for the Board to consider whether a Director is independent in character and judgement and whether there are any
refationships or circumstances which are likely to affect. or could appear to affect. the Director's judgement. The Board has concluded that looking across the
wider Co-operative Group. Co-operative Group Regional Directors (unless employges within the last five years) should be defined as independent while those
representing corporate members of the Co-operative Group could not be so categornised in the Co-operative context. This was because the latter represented
significant “shareholders” with material business relationships.

With the exception of Graham Bennett and Bob Burlton. who represent corporate members of the Co-operative Group. and Martin Beaumont, who holds an
executive appointment in the Co-operative Group. the Board has determined the remaining two Non-Exgcutive Directors, Simon Butler and Kathryn Smith
being Regional Directors of the Co-operative Group. to be independert. However the Board believes that all the Non-Executive Directors bring consicerable
business experience and make valuable contribiutions to the work of the Company.

The Beard Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy. bring strong. independent judgement, knowledge. and
experience to the Board's deliberations. The Non-Executive Directars are of sufficient calibre and number that their views carry significant weight in the Board's
decision making

Untit the 23 February 2005 the Bank did not comply with the Code in relation te having aprointed a Senior Independent Director. As at 23 February 2005. David
Davigs has been nominated as the Senior Independent Director
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Board Procedures
Board and Committee papers are distributed at least one week in advance of meetings. This provides the opportunity for Directors to fully prepare for meetings.
The minutes of all meetings are circulated to all Directors

There i3 regular communication between the Directors. the Chair and the Secretary between meetings.

When a Director is unable to attend Board or Committee meetings. issues can be refayed in advance to the relevant Chair. Written questions for management
on papers are encouraged from Directors between meetings. Arolling schedule of matters arising from Board and Commitiee meetings are followed through

The Roles of the Chair and Chief Executive
The division of responsibilities between the Chair of the Board and the Chief Executive is clearly defined and has been approved by the Bank Board,

The Chair is a Non-Executive Director. He leads the Board in the determination of its strategy and in the achievement of its objectives. The Chair is responsible
for arganising the business of the Board, ensuring its effectiveness and selting its agenda. He has no invalvement in the day-to-day business of the Bank. The
Chair facilitates the effective contribution of Directors and constructive relations between the Executive and Non-Executive Directors. ensures Directars receive
accurate, timely and clear information and facilitates effective communication with shareho'ders.

Details of the Chair's professional commitments are included in the Chair's biography on page 32. The Beard is satisfied that these responsibilities do not
intertere with the performance of the Chair's duties for the Company.

The Chief Executive has direct charge of the Bank on a day-to-day basis and is accountable to the Board for the financial and cperational performance of
the Bank

Board Committees
With the agreement of the Financial Services Autharity. the Board has delegated certain responsibilities to the following Committees. all of which have written
terms of reference covering the authority delegated to it by the Board, copies of which are available from the Secretary on request.

Each of these Committees has a role in overseeing the Company and its subsidiaries.

Audit & Risk Committee

The Bank Audit & Risk Committee stood as a separate Committee until November 2004 when the Board delegated the respansibility of that Committee to the
CF$ Audit & Risk Committee

The Bank Audit & Risk Commiltee comprised four members and was chaired by one of the Independent Professicnal Non-Executive Directors. Graham Stow.
During the year the Committes also comprised David Davies, Tony Lancaster {appointed to the Committee on § July 2004} and Kathryn Smith, This Committes
met four times during the financial year.

Mambership of the CFS Audit & Risk Committes comprises six members, the four listed above together with Len Wardle and Terry Marton (both Non-Executive
Directors of CIS and members of the CIS Audit & Risk Committee). There were five meetings of the Committee during the financial year with the fifth meeting
being the first occasion thai the Committee held the delegated responsibility for Bank audit and risk as referred to above

The Executive Director, Finance and Actuarial of CFS. the Executive Director Risk & Compliance of CFS. Heads of Internal Audit and the External Auditor usually
attend by invitation.

The Code requires at least ong memiber of the CFS Audit & Risk Committes to have significant. recent and relevant financial experience. for example an auditor
or finance director of a listed company. Whilst the Board has determined that no single member meets the requirements of the Combined Code in respect of
significant recent and relevant financial experience. it does believe. however. that collectively the Committee has the skills and experience required to discharge
its duties in regard to the Bank.

The main role and responsibilities of the Committee include all of the recommendations of the Smith Report as seenin the Revised Combined Code. The CFS
Audit & Risk Committee reviews and reports on internal contrcls in accordance with the Turnibull guidance.
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Under its terms of reference, the Committee:

*  monitars the integrity of the Bank's financial statements and any formal announcements relating to the Bank's performance. together with any significan
financial reporting judgements contained in the financial statements:

«  monitors the effectiveness of the external audit process and makes recommendations 1o the Board in relation to the appointment. re-appaintment and
remuneration of the external auditor;

«  ensures that an appropriate relationshio between the Company and the external auditor is maintained. including reviewing non-audit services and fees:

o reviews annually the Bank's systems of internat control and the processes for monitoring and evaluating the risks facing the Bank;

«  reviews the effectiveness of the internal audit function and is responsible for approving. upon the recommendation of the Chief Executive. the appointment
and termination of the Head of that function;

«  reviews its terms of reference; and

« reviews effectiveness annually and recommends to the Board any changes reguired as a result of the review.

In 2004 the Committee discharged its responsibiliies by reviewing:

= the Bank's draft financial statements and interim results staterment prior to Board approval and reviewing the extemnal auditor's detailed reports thereon;

« the appropriateness of the Bank's accounting policies,

+  regulary the potential impact in the Bank's financial statements of certain matters and proposed International Financial Reporting Standards:;

*  the audit fee and reviewing non-audit fees payable to the Bank's external auditor;

+ the external auditor's plan for the audit of the Bank's financial statements. which included key areas of work. key risks in the financial statements.
confirmations of auditor independence, and approval of the terms of engagement for the audit;

+ anannual report on the Bank's systems of internal control and its effectiveness. reporting o the Board on the results of the review and receiving regular
updates on key risk areas of financial control;

= the risks associated with major business programmes; and

= the internal audit function's terms of reference. its work programme and reports on its work during the year.

The Committes alse monitors the Bank’s whistleblowing procedures. ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place for employees to be able to raise
matters of possible impropriety in confidence. with suitable subsequent follow-up action.

Thera should be arrangements for the CFS Audit & Risk Committee to meet with external and internal auditors independently dusing the year without the
presence of management. Members of the CFS Audit & Risk Committee have met KPMG the external auditor five times during 2004, The Committae Chair met
with Internal Audit four times in 2004, New arrangements were introduced early in 2005 to ensure that the CFS Audit & Risk Committee. External and Internal
Audit meet collectively on a regular basis {around the Audit & Risk Committee rmeeting dates) without the presence of management.

Remuneration & Appointments Committee

The CFS Aemuneration & Appaintments Committes mests as a joint commitiee for CFS, ClS and the Bank,

The Committee comprises seven members and is chaired by the CFS Chair. Bob Butlton. During the year the Committee alse comprised Martin Beaumont
Graham Bennett. $imon Butler. Terry Morton (Non-Executive Director of CIS). Kathryn Smith and Graham Stow. Keith Danwin was Chair of the Committee until his
retirernent in May 2004 and Douglas Fletcher (Non-Executive Director of CIS) also sat onthe Committee until his resignation in July 2004. The Committee’s role in
respect of Executive management is to determing remuneration and employment policy. oversee contractual arangements. réview safaries. approve incentive
schemes and any payments macde under such schemes and recommend appoiniments to the Board. In respect of Directors. the Committee makes
recommendations to the Board cn Director remuneration. which in turn makes recommendations to members at the Annual General Meeting. The Committee
also makes recommendations on appointments to Board Committees. The Committee is supported by the Co-cperative Group Remuneration & Appointments
Committee in ensuring consistency. where appropriate. across the wider group. The Committee is responsible for overseeing succession planning. It uses
axternal consultants for the appointment of the Executive and independent Professionat Non-Executive Directors. Other Non-Executive Directors are appointed
by and from the Co-operative Group Board. The Committee met eight times during 2004 and its report can be found on pages 42 0 45
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Bank Advances Committee
This Committee comprises six members and is chaired by the Bank Chair. Graham Bernett, During the year the Commitiee comprised David Davies. Paul
Hewitt, John Marper. Kathryn Smith. and Kevin Blake (Credit Risk & Compliance Management Director). Mervyn Pedelty (former Chief Executive) also sat on the
Committee untd his resignation from the Board with effect from 15 December 2004. Keith Alderson {Director of Corporate Banking) usually attended the

mestings by invitation

The Committee met nine times during the financial year. The main responsibilities of the Committee are to;

«  approve all advances in excess of the delegated lending autharity of the Chief Executive.

o review all decisions taken within the delegated authority of the Chief Exacutive by way of Noting Returns.
*  approve Policy. Sector and other Credit Strategy papers recommended by Credit Committee. and call for such papers and other reports as considered

appropriate.

*  review and approve the reports scheduled under the Reporting Chapter.
»  note positions of reportable excesses for exposures that exceed the delegated lending discretions of the Chief Executive.
*  note exposures equal o or greater than 5% of the Large Exposure Capital Base inline with revised reporting requirements introduced by the FSA in 2004.
= note individual counterparty positions on the High Risk Exposures Return. where Credit Commitiee determines that these should be escalated

+  review any other positions, which Credit Committee determines should be brought to its attention.

Chair's Committee

The Co-operative Bank p.Lt

For consideration of urgent business between meetings. a Chair's Committee can stand. The Committee meets on an ad hoc basis. The Committee held one
meeting in 2004 The Committee comprises the Chair, the Chief Executive and three Non-Executive Directors.

The following table sets out the frequency of. and attendance at. the Board and Board Committee meetings for the period under review by Directors at the

financial vear-end

Main Board Bank Audit & CFS Audit & CFS Remuneration & Bank Advances Chair’s
Risk Commitiee Risk Committee Appointments Committee Committee Committee
Number of
meetings held 12 4 1 3 d 1
Graharm Bennett* 12(12) - - 718 (9 T
Martin Beaurmont 11012} - - 7(8) 1(13
Bob Burlteon 9{9) - - 515} - -
Simon Butler 12{12) - - 8(8) - 1
Keitr Darwin 5 (6) - - 33 - T
David Davies 712y 34 1(1) - 6(9) -
Richard Goddard 11112) - - -
Paul Hewitt 12(12) - - - () -
Tony Lancaster 6 (6) o) am - - -
Sheila Macdonald 11(12) - ) ) i
John Marper 112} - - 9(9) -
Sir Mervyn Pedelty 12{12) - - - 89 {1}
John Reizenstein 4(4) - - - - -
Craig Shannon 4 (4} - - - - -
Kathryn Smith 12{12) 4(d) 141) 7 (8} 9(9) -
Graham Stow* 11(12) 414) 418) - -

Peter Sutcliffe

11(12)

*Also members of the Co-cperative Group Audit & Risk Committee.

The number in brackets indicates the total number of meetings the Director was eligible to attend during the year.

In the case of a Director being unable to attend a meeting. the Chair has received a satisfactory reason for their absence

Attendance of CIS Directors who also sit on any of the above Committees may be found in the Statement of Corporate Governance in the 2004 Repaort and

Financial Statements of that Society.
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Provision of advice te Directors

A number of external consultants provide professional advice to the Board at no expense to the Directors. This is co-ordinated through the Group Secretariat.
The Bank maintains appropriate Directors and Officers’ Liability Insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors.

Professional Development

On appointment, the Directors take part in an induction programme where they receive information about the Bark. This includes the role of the Board and the
matters reserved for its decision, the terms of reference and membership of the principal Board and management Committees. and the powers delegated 1o
those Committees. the Bank's corporate governance praclices and procedures. including the powers reserved to the Bank's most senior executives. and the
latest financial information about the Bank. Training programmes have been provided to address specific business areas e.g. Requlation under the Financial
Services Authority. In 2004 the Bank introcduced training using an external consuitant for Audit & Risk Committee members. Throughout their period in office the
Directors are continually updated on the Bank's business. the competitive and regulatory environments in which it operates. corporate social responsibility
matters and other changes affecting the Bank and the industries inwhich it operates by written briefings and meetings with senior executives. Directors are also
advised on appointment of their legal and other duties and obligations as a Director both in writing and in face-to-face meetings with the Secretary.

Performance Evaiuation
The Code requires the Board to undertake a formal and rigorous annual evaluation of its own performance and that of its Committees and individual directors

During 2004. CFS appointed external consultants to undertake a review of. in accordance with professional standards. the high level controls and governance
struchure across CFS. the Bank and CIS, including the strength and effectiveness of the Bank Board and the process for defining and implementing strategy.
Key to this review was an assessment of the operation of the Bank Boarg, Board Committess. Senior Management and Internal Auddit, Work included interviews
with Directors. review of managemeant information, documentation of policies and Board and Committee minutes. The Board reviewed the comments from the
review and has taken action to address any issues. Building on this work. in 2005 each Director will ba asked to complete a questionnaire on Board
perfarmance which will be anaiysed by the Secretary and reported back to the Board,

The Board has developed an assessment process using external consuliants for individual Non-Executive Directors. It is currently reviewing how this process
can be supplemenied to further sirengthen the Board's evaluation of the performance of individual directors.

The Secretary to the Board

The Secretary is piofessionally qualified and is responsible for advising the Board through the Chair on all governance matters. The Directors have access to
the advice and services of the Secretary. The Bank's Artickes of Association and the schedule of matters reserved to the Board for decision provide that the
appointment and removal of the Secretary is a matter for the full Board

The Executive
The Board delegates management of the business to an Executive Committee. headed by the Chief Executive (from 16 Decernber 2004, Paul Hewitt, Acting
Chief Executive). Some of the Committee. but not all. are Board Executive Directors. It is the responsibility of the Executive Management to implement the

strategic objectives as agreed by the Board. The Executive, under the leadership of the Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Bank.

The Executive Management of the Bank as at January 2005 is listed below:

Paul Hewitt™ Age 48 Acting Chief Executive

SheifaMacdonald*  Age ST  Executive Director & Chief Operating Ofticer.
Keith Alderson Aged4  Director of Corporate Banking

Kevin Blake Age 46 Credit Risk & Compliance Management Director
David Craggs Agedi  Customer Services Director

Richard Goddard ™ Age47  Executive Director, Finance & Risk

lan Hodges Age 35 Director of Retail Natwork

Christine Petyt Aged5  Diector of Operations. smile

Peter Sutcliffe * Age 57  Executive Director Retail Banking Business Management
Rob Woolley Ageds  Director of Customer Contact Centre (CIS)
~Board Executive Director

Relations with Shareholders

The Bank has two equity shareholders. The majority of shares are held by Co-operative Financial Services Limited. which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Co-operative Group. The remainder of the shares are held by the Co-operative Group. A number of Directors from the Boards of the member organisations sit
onthe Bank Board ensuring a comman understanding of objectives.
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The Bank has approximalely 2.500 preference shareholders. The preference shares are fixed interest shares and are non-cumulative and irredeemable. The
preference shareholders are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting but the shares only carry speaking or voting rights if and when the dividend has been
in arrears for six months or more. of if & resolution is 1o be proposed at the Annual General Meeting abrogating oF varying any of their respective rights or
privileges of for ine winding-up of the Bank o other return of capital and then only on such resolution.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall regponsibility for the Company's system of internal canirgls, which aim to safeguard the Bank's assels. ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and that the financial information used within the business and for publication is accurate. reliable and fairdly presents the financial
position of the Bank and the results of its business operations. The Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal controls
This has been in place for the year under review and is regularly reviewed by the Board. The system is designed to provide reasonable assurance of effectve
operations and compliance with iaws and regulations. although any sysiem of intemnal controls can only provide reasonable. not absolute. assurance aganst
material migstatement or loss. and can only mitigate rather than eliminate the risk of faiture to achieve busingss objectives.

Since the publication in September 1999 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales of the Turnbull Report. ‘Intetnal Control: Guidance for
Directors on the Combined Code’. the Directors have continued to review the effectiveness of the Bank's system of financial and non-financial contols
including operational and compliance controls, risk management and the Bank's high level internal control arrangements,

The Bank has adopted aninternal control framewaork that contains the following key elements:

Control environment

The Bank's controi environment is designed to create an attitude of taking acceptable business risk within clearly defined limits. The control environment

includes:

»  anorganisational structure with clear lines of responsibility. delegation of authority and reporting requirements;

»  clearly defined policies for capital and revenue expenditure. Larger capital and revenue expenditure requires the Co-operative Group Board authorisation,

+  comprehensive systems of financial reporting. The annual budget and long term plan of the Bank and of each Division are reviewed and approved by the
Board. Results are reported against budget and prior year The relevant Executives consider any significant changes and variances and remedial action is
taken where appropriate;

*  aWnistleblowing Policy and Procedlure which provides for any employee to repart in confidence. suspected serious malpractice; and

+  internal Audit and Compliance functions that review the system cf internal control

Risk assessment

The Board and Executive Management have the primary responsibiiity for icentifying the key business risks facing the Company. The Board has established
Board Committees and Executive Management Committees 1o administer a risk management process. which identifies the key risks facing the business and
ensures they are managed effectively.

Management has the prime responsibility for identifying and evaluating significant risks and for designing and operating suitable controls.

Each risk in the Risk Register is assigned to an appropriate manager wha is responsible for ensuring that it is managed in accordance with the Bank's risk
management pracess which is kept under review 1o ensure that it accords with best practice and the evolving requirernents of the FSA. Risk agsessments are
updated on a quanterly basis. Significant risks are reported to the Risk Management Committee. the Executive Risk Review Committee and the CFS Audit &
Gigk Commities,

Details of the Bank's Risk Management policy and procedures are provided on pages 23 to 25.

Executive Risk Review Commitiee

The Committee comprises of five members and is chaired by John Marper ({Executive Director. Risk & Compliance of CFS). The Committee mét five times in
2004. The main responsibilities of the Committee are to:

+  reviewthe quarierly Significant Risk Beports and advice provided to the Executive and Risk Managers;

*  ensure that Significant Risks have bean considered as an integral part of normal Executive Committee meetings; and

*  provide input o Risk Macagement from Executives who da not have direct specific Risk Management rasponsibiliies,

Controi Procedures

The Bank control procedures are designed 1o ensure complete and accurate accounting for financial transactions and to limit the potential exposure 16 foss of
assets of fraud,

Up to date manuals are maintained that cover the Bank's accounting policies and procedures. banking. insurance. employees’ policies and procedures, and
infarmation technology standards. These manuals are fssued to appropriate management who are trained in the procedures.
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Information and communication

Communication takes place with all key stakeholders through a variety of media including the CFS Sustainability Report. Employees receive and provide information on

strategy and objectives through their reporting lines and a formal performance measurement process. Newsletters, bulleting and electronic media communicate other
infarmaticn.

Monitering

The operation of the system of internal controd is the responsibility of line management. Itis subject to independent review by Internal Audit and. where appropriate, by
the Bank's external auditors and extermal reguiators

The CF5 Audit & Risk Committee on behalf of the Board reviews the reports of the Bank oninternal contral. Full details of the operation of the Committee can be found on
pages 36 and 37.

A key part of the work of the Committee is an annual “letter of assurance’ process by which responsible managers confirm the adequacy of their systems of internal
financial and non-financial cantrols. their compliance with Bank policies (including those relating to safety. health and the environment). local laws and regulations

{including the industry's regulatary requiremants) and report any control improvements required. The Directors review the system of internal contrals and believe it
complies with the Turnbult Repont guidance

External Audit

One of the duties of the CFS Audiit & Risk Committes is to make recommendations to the Co-operative Group Audit and Aisk Committee in relation to the appointment of

the external auditor. in July 2003 the Co-operative Group Board approved the re-appointment of KFMG Audit Plc as the external auditor following a compatitive ternder
exercise.

Details of the amounts paid to the external auditor during the year for audit and other services are set out in note 2 on page 56.

The Committee has put in place safeguards to ensure that the independence of the auditis not compromised including a policy on the conduct of non-audit services
from the external auditor. The external auditor is permitted 1o provide some non-audit services that are not, and are not perceived te be. in conflict with its independence.
The Co-operative Group Audit & Risk Committee receives at each meeting a report providing details of assignments and related fees carried out by the external auditor
of the Bank in addition to its statutory audit work. The pre-approval of the Committee is required for services abaove centain thresholds determined by the Committes. 1n
addition, the following assignments are prohibited from being performed by the external auditor

¢ book keeping or other services refated to the accounting records or financial statements,

= financial information systems design and implementation;

+  acluara) services;

* internal audit outsourcing services,

+ management functions or human resources: and

*  any other services that the Audit & Risk Committee may determine.

The performance of the external auditor is regularly monitored to ensure it meets the needs of the Bank and the results are reported to the Committee.

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function is an independent appraisal function. which derives its authority from the Board through the CFS Audit & Risk Committee. Its primary
ole is 1o provide reasonable and objective assurance about the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial control framework and risk management,

Internal Audit seeks to discharge the respensibilities set down in its charter by reviewing the processes which ensure that business risks are effectively managed;
reviewing the financial and operational controls which help to ensure that tha Bank's assets are properly safeguarded from losses. inciuding fraud, reviewing the controls

which help 1o ensure compliance with corporate objectives, policies and procedures and external legisiation and regulation; and on an ad hoc basis. reviewing that value
for money is obitained.

Internal Audit also acts as a source of constructive advice and best practice. assisting senior managemient with its responsibility to improve the processes by which
business risks are identified and managed and to report and agvise on the proper and effective use of resources.

internal Audit reports are submitted to the CFS Audit & Risk Committee and significant issues are reported from that Committee to the Co-operative Group Audit & Risk
Committee.

STATEMENT ON GOING CONCERN

After making all appropriate enguiries. the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in operational existence faor the
foresgeable future. For this reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the Bank's financial statements.
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Remuneration Report

Tne Co-operative Bark uses. as a guideling for ils disclosure inrelation to remuneration. the requirements applicable to Listed Companies. as set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002

The Bank Board comprises Non-Executive Directors including Independent Professional Non-Executive Direclors appointed by the Co-operative Group
Board. and Exgcutive Directors appointed by the CFS Board. The former Chief Executive. Sir Menyn Pedelty. who reésigned from the Board with effect from
15 December 2004. had a contract of service with the Bank. CFS. CIS and the Co-operative Group Boards. Paul Hewitt joined the Bank Board on 16 May
2003 as a Non-Executive Director and, on 16 December 2004, was appointed Acting Chief Executive far CFS. CIS and the Bank. His emoluments. in
respect of his former role. can be found in the Co-operative Group accounts, Those far his current role can be found in Table 1.

This report provides details of the remuneration of both the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors.

This report will be put to a vote of shargholders of the company at its Annual General Meeting which will be held on 11 May 2005.

Introduction

The Remuneration Report is presented by the Board and contains the following informaticn:

« adescription of the role of the CFS Bemuneration & Appaintments Committee {“the Commitlea™), in respect of the Bank;

= asummary of the Bank's remuneration policy. including a statement of policy on Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors;

+ details of the terms of the Service Contracts and the remuneration of the Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors for the 2004 financial year.
The CF3 Remuneration & Appointments Commiittes meets as a joint Committee for CFS. CIS and the Bank. Its role is described below.

Role of the CFS Remuneration & Appointments Committee

The Committee’s principa! terms of reference are to:

+ determine policy onremuneraticn and other main terms and conditions of employment;

+ oversee contractual arrangements for Executive Directors and approve the principai terms and conditiens of employment of such Executive Directors:

+  review salaries using comparisons against the agreed market policy;

+ approve any incentive schemes. and ensure that they are in ling with current market practice. and authorise payments under any incentive schemes in
line with their rules;

*  receive. review and decide on issues raised by the trustees of the The Co-operative Bank Pension Scheme. and acvise the Board about them
as appropriate.

The Co-cperative Group Remuneration & Appoiniments Committee oversees these arrangements in respect of the Chief Executive of CFS and the Bank.

At the end of 2004, the CFS Remuneration & Appointments Committee comprised Bob Buriton (Chair of the CFS Board) as Chair of the Committee.
together with Graham Bennett (Chair of the Bank). Simon Butler (Chair of CIS}. Martin Beaumant, Terry Morton {(Non Executive Director of CIS}. Kathryn
Smith and Graham Stow. Keith Darwin wag Chair of the Committee untii bis retirement on 23 May 2004, Douglas Fletcher (Non-Executive Director of CIS)
was also a member of the Committes until his resignation from the CIS Board on 21 July 2004. The former Chief Executive. and from 16 December 2004. the
Acting Chief Exective and the CFS Resources Director have usually attended the meetings of the Committee. except when matters conceming their cwn
remungration arrangemeants were being considered. The CFS Secretary usually attends ali meetings. Other individuals are invited to attend for specific
agenda items when necessary.

The Commitiee members are all Non-Executive Directars. one of whorn is an Independent Professional Non-Executive Director. They have no personal
financial interesis in the Committee's decisions. and they have no invalvement in the day-to-day business of the Bank. The Committee met eight times in
the period under review.

To ensure that it receives independent guidance an remuneralion matters, the Commitiee has retainad remuneration consultants Watson Wyait as its
adviser. Watson Wyalt have supplied advice on remuneration survey data. market trends and pensions matters. including incentive schemes. Watson
Wyatl also provides specialist advice in relation to The Co-operative Bank Pension Scheme and some other general remungration advisory services.

Solicitors Addlesiaw Goddard. who were appointed by the Secretary of the Commitiee. provided legal advice 1o the Cormnenittee with respect (o Executive
Directors' Service Contracts.

Pollcy on Directors’ remuneration

Executive Directors

In determining the remuneration policy for Executive Directors. the Committee has considered a number of factors including:

* theimportance of attracting. retaining and motivating senicr management of the appropriate calibre to further the success of the Bark;

« thelinking of reward to both business and individual performance; and

*  ensuring that the interests of the Executive Directors are aligned with those of the Bank

The current policy is to remunerate those Executive Directors who also sit on the CFS Board in line with the market median for similar sized main board roles
in the Financial Services Sector. and to remunerate other Executive Directors. who sit on the Bank Board only. at the Financial Services Sector market
median.

In 2004. the Committee considered a valuation of all elements of Executive Directors’ remuneration, including penston berefits. to ensure that it was aware
of their total remuneration in comparison with redevant extermnal comparators, and appropriate remuneration covering all Mmajor cormponants of their reward
package. The Committee considers that a successful remuneration policy needs o be sufficiently flexible to take account of future changes in the Bank's
business environment. and in comparative remuneration practice.
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The main components of Executive Directors’ remuneration are:

1) Basic Salary

1tis the Committee's policy to ensure that the basic salary for each Executive Director is appropriate and competitive for the respansibilities involved. Base
salarigs for Executive Directors are raviewed by the Committee. normaliy annually. having regard to competitive market practice (in particular salary levels
for similar positions in comparable companies). business and individual performance curing the financial year. The normal salary review date for those
Executive Directors who also sit on the CFS Board (CFS Executive Ditectors) is at the start of each financial year in January. and on 1 Aprit for other
Executive Direclors. Base salary is the only element of remuneration that is pensionable. Salaries received by Executive Directors during the financial year
are set out in Table 1 on page 44

2) Annyal Incentive Scheme

Each Executive Director is eligible to participate inan annual performance related incentive schame. The Committee reviews and sels incentive targets and
levels of eligibility annually. The target level under the scheme for the 2004 financial year was 35% of base salary for CFS Executive Directors. except for the
tormer Chief Executive for whom the target level was 40% of salary. and 25% for ather Bank Executive Directors. There is a maximum bonus potentia! for
CFS Executive Directors of 60% of base salary for substantially exceeding targets. {former Chief Executive 86.8%) and 40% for other Bank Executive
Directars. From 2005. the bonus architecture for the Chief Executive will be the same as for all other GFS Executive Directors,

Far CFS Executive Directors. targets in the bonus year 2004 related 10 financial performance measured by CFS' profit (including that contributed by the
Bank), and CiS’ life fund performance with weightings appropriate to sach individual's area of responsibility. and 30% 1o indivicual performance. For the
Chief Operating Officer of the Bank and Bank Executive Directors, 30% and 40% respectively of their maximum bonus is weighted to thelr business unit and
individual performance. and 70% and 60% respectively to CFS' performance. For the former Chief Executive the ratio was 90% against CFS performance.
and 10% based on wider Co-operative Group initiatives.

All ratios will remain the same for 2006

The payments for the Annual Incentive Scheme in respect of the year 2004 are reflected in Table 1 within “Performance related pay.”

3) Medium Term Incentive Scheme

A Medium Term Incentive Scheme was introduced in 2003 for both CFS Executive Directors and for Executive Directors of the Bank in order to align their
objectives with the longer term interests of the business. The scheme sets cumulative targets across a three-year peried. Performance against these
targets is reviewed by the Committee on an annual basis. Cumulative annual profit performance must be at or above "Threshold" level for payment o be
made for that particular year. Targets for subsequent three-year periots are then set. The second three-year period of operation of the scheme is 2004 -
2006 with potential payment in 2007. The target payment level under the scheme for CFS Executive Directors for that three-year period {and subsequent
years} is 28% of basic salary {33.3% for the former Chief Executive) with a stretch fevel of 42% of basic salary {80% for the former Chiet Executive} for
substantially out-performing targets. Equivatent figures for Bank Executive Directors are 20% and 30%. For the 2005 scheme. the bonus architecture for the
Chief Executive will be the same as far all other CFS Executive Directors. The first potential payment under the scheme 2003 - 2005 would be made in 2006
on the basis disclosed in the 2003 Remuneration Report.

The performance measures selected by the Commitiee are specific projects related to delivery of strategic objectives, derived from CFS' Strategic Plan
which is updated annually. The performance measures are based on the achievement of milestones and objectives limited 1o strategically important
projects. and on the maintenance of financial objectives.

4) Service Contracts

It is the Bank's policy for the notice period in Executive Directors’ service contracts not 10 exceed one year. CFS Executive Directors have consistent
contracts which are lerminable by up 10 one year's nolice by the organisation and six months' notice by the individual. Payment in eu of notice includes
salary. berefits in kind and penston. The Remuneration & Appointments Committee may make a discretionary award of outstanding bonus payments
earned up to the date of termination of employment.

The intention is that all the Bank Executive Directors should have similar contracts during 2005. The dates of existing contracts or dates of appointment are
shown inTatle 1.

The tormer Chief Executive entered into a new service contract in 2003 with the Co-operative Group. CFS. CIS and the Bank on the above terms.

it is the Commitiee’'s policy to apply service contracts for any newly recruited Executive Directors in a similar form to the model which has been developed
for existing Executive Directors.

Remuneration report
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2004 2003
Date of service contract Basic Parformance Benetils n 2004 Total 2003 Tral
or apneirtmear (vis) Salary related pay nd eroluments g} smolymerts i}

400 bavall] £ 30C €00
Sir Mervyn Pedelty (). (i), {iv). (v 6 May 2003 541 - 40 581 980
Paul Hewirt (ill). {iv). (v]. (x) 16 December 2004 35 - 2 37 -
Sheila Macdanald {iv). (v} 6 January 2005 261 a1 27 319 362
Richard Goddard (vi) & November 2002 122 13 10 145 207
John Marper (iv). (v} 6 January 2005 253 29 18 300 394
Peter Sutcliffe (vi) 10 January 2003 138 15 10 163 251
John Reizenstein (iv]. (v}, (vi). (vii), {x) 6 January 2005 a8 10 7 115 -
Craig Shannon {iv). (v}, {vii) 11 February 2005 92 10 8 110 -
1.540 108 122 1.770 2174
Former Directors who served the Bank in 2003 - - - - 70
Amounts attributable to fellow subsidiaries (iv} {@19) {47) (63) {1.035) {1.016)
Total &21 61 53 735 1.228

MNotes

(i) Highest paid Directar

(i) Sir Mervyn Pedeity resigned as a Bank Executive Director with effect from 15 December 2004 and may become entitled to payments after that date with
acost to be determined.

(i} Appointed Acting Chief Executive. CFS on 16 December 2004. Emoluments for his former role as Non-Executive Director for the Co-gperative Group
are included within that entity's financial statements.

(iv) The emoluments in the table represent total basic pay. benefits in kind and performance related pay in respect of services as a Director of the Bank.
CFS and CI5. Of these emoluments, 15% (80% for Sheita Macdonald) have been apportioned 1o the Bank and 85% {20% for Sheila Macdonald) of the
emcluments have been recharged to fellow greup companies in respect of senvices as a Directer or Senior Manager of CIS and CFS3. 2003
emoluments have been restated accordingly.

w) Executive Directors who also sit. or who have sat. on the CFS Board during the financial year,

tvi) Benefits in kind includes a car allowance which is paid with base salary, but is not penstonable

{vii) Appeinted to the Bank Board 14 September 2004.

{viii} Date of appointment or service contract may differ from date service commenced with the Bank.

(ix} Excludes pension values which are shown in Table 2.

(¥ The basic salary figures for Paul Hewitt and John Reizenstein inciude a salary supplement in lieu of certain pensicn benefits

Share Options
The Bank does not operate a Share Option Scheme.

Appointments Outside the Bank

The Committee has determined that Executive Directors may accept one Non-Executive directorship. or similar. with an external organisation believing that
this represents an important opportunity for professional development. Paul Hewitt has one Non-Executive directorshsp. Any fees received from such arole
will normally be paid to the Bank. CFS or the Co-operative Group.

Pensions

All the Executive Directors (exciuding Paul Hewitt who is a member of the Co-operative Group (CWS) Limited Pension Fund {'the Group Fund?) are
members of The Co-operative Bank Pension Scherme {the Scheme ). The Scheme and the Group Fund are funded. Inland Revenue approved. defined
benetit final salary occupational pension schemes. Members of the Group Fund are required to contribute. Existing members of the Scheme will be
required to contribute from January 2005. Pension detaiis of the Executive Directors are shown in Table 2.

The pensicn arrangements broadly provide a pensicn of two-thirds of final pensionable salary after 40 years' service. subject to Inland Revenue limits.
However, the pensions for Sir Mervyn Pedelty. John Marper and Sheila Macdonald accrue at an enhanced rate. Pensions are also payable to dependants
ondeath and a lump sumis payable if death occurs in service

Unfunded. unapproved arrangements are in place to provide pension bengfits to those Executive Directors atfected by the pensions cap except for Paul
Hewitt and John Reizenstein. These arrangements are designed to provide pension benefits in excess of the Intand Revenue cap. thereby placing thase
Executive Directors in broadly the same position as those whose pension is unaffected by the cap. The pension benelits for Paul Hewitt and John
Reizenstein are limited to the Inland Revenue cap but they are paid a salary supplement of 30% and 15% of salary above the cap respectively. in leu of
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Remuneration report

pension benefits above the cap

Supplementary life assurance cover is provided to Executive Directors in order to provide total life cover of 4 x salary when aggregated with Scheme
benefils.

The normal retirement age of the Executive Directors is 60
The Finance Act 2004 introduces significant changes te the way in which benefits can be provided from approved pension schemes. These changes will
take effect from 6 April 2006 and in preparation for this. a review of Execulive Directors’ pension arrangements will be undertaken during 2005

Table 2 - Pension details of the Executive Directors

Ageat “aars at Toal accrued Norease Tranglarvalie  Tranclarvalie  Transiervalle Irereate
& January Sevice pensicn at B T of praviaus of wtai af 1atal - transtar
2005 § January fenson oenzior column At aceried accrued vale

20051 duning the durng e B.Arus peansona ceasion al

year year ine: ot 20Ganat of 1G January a.aruary

irflationt mernoer s 2004 2005

confrioutens

£000 £300 £300 ECD0 2000 £400 £300
Sir Menvyn Pedelty (i) 55 7 139 29 26 393 1.577 2118 541
Paul Hewitt {ii) 48 1 3 - - 1 30 33 3
Sheila Macdonald 57 25 121 24 21 342 1.450 1.956 506
Richard Goddard a7 1" 32 6 5 46 243 313 70
John Marper 58 15 84 11 g 180 1161 1.442 281
John Reizenstein iy 48 1 3 - - 4 20 26 6
Craig Shannon (ifi) 41 1 9 2 2 13 53 68 15
Peter Sutcliffe 57 32 74 7 5 84 1.035 1.242 207

{i} Theaccrued pensionis that which would be paid annually on retirement at normal retirement age based on setvice to 8 January 2005

(i} Sir Mervyn Pedeity resigned as a Director with effect from 15 December 2004. the pension details are based on the date of leaving.

(i} John Reizenstein and Craig Shannon ware appointed as Directors on 14 September 2004. Paul Hewitt was appointed Acting Chief Executive. CFS on 16
December 2004. The increase in accrued pension during the year and the increase in transfer value appiy from the date of the relevant appointments
Members of the Scheme have the option of paying adiditional voluntary contributions within Inland Revenue limits. Neither these contributions nor the
benefits arising from them are shown in the table above.

Z

v

{wi

All transfer vajues have been calculated in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN11.

Executive Direclors may elect t¢ take the value of any unfunded. unapproved pension as a taxable lump sum rather than as pension. if an Executive
Director exercises this aption. the cost of this may differ from the value shown in the table depending. inter alia. on market rates at the time the option is
exgrcised. The most significant adjustments would be that. under existing tax rules and on certain standard actuarial assumptions. for Sir Mervyn
Pedelty the: transter vaiue at 10 January 2004 would have been circa £1.8 million and at 15 Dacember 2004 circa £2 7 million

Non-Executive Directors
All the Non-Exacutive Directors are appointed by, and their Directors fees are determined and paid by. the Co-cperative Group. Details of the Non-

Executive Directars’ tees can be found in the Co-operative Group's annual remuneration report except for the Independent Professional Nan-Executive
Directors. for whom the details are set out below.

The Bank Board includes three Independent Professional Nen-Executive Directors. who are:

» David Davies. who was appointed to the Board on 3 June 2003. and received total remuneration of £38 854 during the year

+ Tony Lancaster, who was appointed to the Board on 27 May 2004, and received total remuneration of £31.538 dunng the year

+  Graham Stow. who was appointed to the Board on 4 March 2003. and received total remuneration of £38.654 during the year

With effect from 1 March 2004. the Directors’ fees for the Independent Professional Non-Executive Directors are £40.000 per annum.

Of the Non-Executive Directors only the Independent Professional Non-Executive Directors are party 10 agreements with the Co-operative Group
governing the terms on which their services are made avalilable to the Bank.

*  Graham Stow has a three-year agreement effective up to 31 May 2006,

» David Davies had a three-year agreement effective up to 31 May 2006 which has been extended to the end of the Co-operative Group's Annual

General Meeting in 2007 with the approval of the Co-operative Group Board following his appointment as Senicr independent Director with effect from
23 February 2005

= Tony Lancaster holds a three-year agreement effective from 1 April 2004 to 31 May 2007

The Co-operative Group Board may resolve to reappeint any of the Independent Professional Non-Executive Directors at or betore the date their contracts
expire far a fusther three-year term

The agreements contain ne specific provision for liquidated damages on early termination of a contract

None of the above Directors are Directors of the Co-operative Group or members of any Group Pensicn Scheme or Incentive Scheme,

By Order of the Board
Bob Burlton. Chair. CFS Remuneration & Appointments Committeg
Graham Benneft. Chair of the Board

7 Apeil 2005 a5




Auditor's report The Co-operative Bankp |.c

Independent Auditor's report to the membars of The Co-gperative Bank p.Lc.

We have audited the financial statements on pages 48 to 80.This report is made solely to the company's members. as a body. in accordance with section
235 of the Companies Act 1985 and our terms of engagement. Cur audit work has been undentaken so that we might state 10 the company's members
those matters we are required to state to them in our auditors' report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members. as a body. for our audit worke for this report. or for the opinions we
have formed.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Audltors

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Repont. As described on page 34 this includes responsibility for preparing the financial statements in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom taw and accounting standards. Qur responsibilities. as independent auditors. are established in the United
Kingdom by statute. the Audiling Practices Board and by our profession's ethical guidance,

‘We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 1985. We also report to you if. in our opinion. the Directors' report is not consistent with the financial statements. if the company has not kept proper
accounting records. it we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. or if information specified by law regarding
Directors’ remuneration and transactions with the Group is not disclosed.

In addition to our audit of the financial statements. the Directors have engaged us to review their corporate governance statement as if the company were
required to comply with the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority in relation to these matters. We review whether the statement on pages 3510 41
reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Code specified for our review by those ules. and we repert if it does not. We
are not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal contral covers all risks and contiols. of form an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report, including the corporate governance statement. and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. We censider the implications for our repon if we become aware of any apparent misstaternents or material inconsistencies
with the financial staterents.

Basis of audit opinicn

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination. on a test basis. of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements. and of whether the accounting palicies are appropriate to the Group's circumstances.
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit s0 as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order 10 provide us with
sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement. whether caused by fraud or other
irreqularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of informatian in the financial statements,

Oplnion
Inour opirion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group as at 8 January 2005 and of the profit of
the group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1986.
b Aaic Pl
KPMG Audit Pl
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditer
Marnchester
7 Aprii 2005
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Consolidated profit and loss account

For the year ended 8 January 2005
Al amounts are stated in £m untess otherwise indicated

48

Neolas

Interest receivable
Interest receivable and similar income arising from debt securities

Qther interest receivable and similar income

Interest payable

Net Interest Income

Dividend income
Fees and commissions receivable
Fees and commissions payable

Dealing profits/(losses) 28

Operating Income

Administrative expenses

Staff costs 1

Other

Depreciation and amortisation 16
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts ah!
Profit on Ordinary Activities before Taxation 2

Taxation on profit on grdinary activities 5

Profit on Ordinary Activitles after Taxation

Minority interests

Profit for the Financial Year 3]
Preference dividend to non-equity shareholders 7
Qrdinary dividend 1o equity shareholders 7
Retained Profit for the Year 25
Earnings per share (basic and diluted) 8

Movements in profit and loss account resenves are shown in note 25 on page 71

There are no recognised gains and losses cther than the profit for the year.

All profits have been derived from continuing operations.

Profit on ordinary activities betore taxation represents the FRS 3 caption cperating profit

The Co-operative Bank p.l.c

2004 2003
79.2 1081
513.3 419.2
582.5 5273
(267.6) {195.0)
324.9 332.3
0.3 [0
220.4 2181
{49.7) 139.4)
41 83
509.0 5028
(134.6) {126.8)
(156.9) (161.5)
(22.7) 212)
(314.2) (309.5)
194.8 1934
{62.8) 63.3)
132.0 1301
(39.6} 30.1)
92.4 910
2.2) @1
90.2 889
(5.5) 58)
{20.0) {20.0)
84.7 63.4
7.70p 11.46p

The notes on pages 53 to 80 form part of these financial statements




The Co-operative Bank p.l.c

Consolidated balance sheet

A B January 2005
All amounts are stated in £m unless atherwise indicated

NolES 2004 2003
Assels
Cash and balances at central banks 1724 140.4
Iterms in the course of collection from other bartks 1081 1210
Loans and advances to banks g 1,073.0 773.2
Loans and advances 1o customers 10 7,613.1 61338
Debt securities 12 1,676.8 20798
Equity shares 13 1.2 1.2
Interests in associated undertakings 14 0.2 0.2
Tangible fixed assets 16 94.0 819
Other assets 17 41.7 59.3
Prepayments and accrued income 98.8 77
Total assets 26 10,872.3 3.478.0
Liabilities
ltems in the course of transmission to other banks 7.8 7.3
Deposits by banks 18 647.2 770.0
Customer accounts 19 8,098.7 7.385.4
Debt securities inissug 20 A 224.7
Other liabilities 21 138.8 1280
Accruals and deferred income 165.3 129.7
Pravisions for liabilties and charges 22
Deferred taxation 1341 g8
Other provisions 6.9 77
Subordinated liabilities 23 327.6 1792
Minority interests {equity) 15 215 20.2
Called up share capital 24
Qrdinary shares 55.0 550
Preference shares (non-equity) 60.0 60.0
115.0 115.0
Share premium account 29 8.8 88
Profit and loss account 25 556.9 4922
Shareholders' funds (£60 million of which relates to non-equity) 680.7 816.0
Total liabilities 26 10,879.3 9.478.0
Memorandum items 27
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 375 375
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security 56.9 61.3
104.4 98.8
Commitrments
Other commitments 6,257.5 6.382.5

Appraved by the Board on 7 April 2005 and signed on its behaif by
Graham Bennett, Chair

Paut Hewitt, Acting Chief Executive
Maira Lees. Secrelary

The notes on pages 53 to 80 form part of these financial statements
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Balance sheet

Al 8 January 2005

All amounts are stated in Em untess atherwise indicated

50

Assets

Cashand balances at central banks
Items in the course of collection from other banks
Loans and advances 16 banks
Loans and advances to custormers
Debt securities

Equity shares

Shares in Group undertakings
Tangible fixed assets

Other assets

Prepayments and accrued income

Tolal assets

Liabilities.
Items in the course of transmission to other banks
Deposits by banks
Customer accounts
Debt securities inissue
Other liabilities
Accruals and deferred income
Provisions for liabilties and charges
Deferred taxation
Other provisions
Subordinated liabilities

Called up share capital
Ordinary shares
Preference shares (non-equity)

Share premium account
Profit and loss account
Shareholders’ funds (£60 million of which relates to non-equity)

Total liabifities

Memorandum items
Contingent liabilities
Acceptances and endarsements
Guarantees and assets pledged as collateral secutrity

Commitments
Other commitments

Appraved by the Board on 7 April 2005 and signed or its behalf by

Graham Benneft, Chair ‘-/\

Paul Hewitl, Acting Chief Executive

Moa { ees, Secretary I\m m

10
12
13
15
16
17

26

18
19
20
21

2

23

24

25
25

26

27

The Co operative Bank p.L.c

21004 2603
172.4 140.4
108.0 116.0

1,073.0 773.2
7,546.4 60732
1,378.3 18500
1.2 1.2
1.2 12

B7.3 84.6

41.4 581

89.4 704

10,498.6 9.168.3
7.5 71
659.4 7738
7,7785 712682
7.7 2247
135.0 1241
146.9 127.3
4.5 -

6.0 6.9
3276 1792

55.0 550

50.0 60.0
115.0 1150

88 8.8
537.7 475.2
661.5 599.0

10,498.6 91683

375 37.5

6.1 811
103.6 88.6

6,245.7 6.3836

The notas on pages 53 to 30 form part of these financial statements




The Cor aperative Bark p..c Beconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

Aff amounts are stated i £m unless otherwise mdicated

2004 2003
Group
Profit far the financial year 90.2 88.9
Issued share capital - 200
Dividends {25.5) {25.5)
Net increase in sharshoiders’ funds 64.7 834
Shareholders' funds at beginning of vear 616.0 532.6
Shareholders” funds at end of year 680.7 616.0
Bank
Profit for the financial year 88.0 86.1
Issued share capital - 20.0
Dividends {25.5) (25.5)
Netincrease in shareholders' funds 62.5 80.6
Shareholders’ funds at beginning of year 599.0 518.4
Sharehclders’ funds at end of year 661.5 599.0

The notes on pages 53 o 80 form part of these linancial statements 51




Consolidated cash flow statement The Co-operaiive Bank gl .

For the year ended 8 January 2005
Aftamounts are staled in Em unless othenwise indicaled

Notes 2004 2003
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities 30 {108.4) 665.1
Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Preference dividends paid {5.6} (5.6}
Interast paid on subordinated liabilities (13.6) (137
Dividend paid o minority shareholders in subsidiary undertaking {0.8) 0.7
Net cash outflow from returns on investments
and servicing of finance {20.0) (20.0)
Taxation
United Kingdom corporation tax paid (33.4) (38.6)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of investments (951.8) {1.3649)
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments 1,036.9 338.2
Purchase of tangible fixed assets {26.9) {36 .5)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 0.1 01
Net cash inftow/{outfiow) from capital expenditure and
financial investment 58.3 (563 1)
Acquisitions and disposals
Proceeds from disposal of associated undertaking l - ! ] Q.1 l
Net cash inflow trom acquisitions and disposals - Q.1
Equity dividends paid
Crdinary share dividends paid {15.0) {20.00
Financing
Repayment of subcrdinated loanstock - 07
issue of subordinated loanstock 147.9 -
Proceeds from issue of Qrdinary Share Capital - 200
Net cash inflow from flnancing 147.9 193
Increase in cash 30 29.4 428

52 Trne notes on pages 53 1o 80 form part of these financial statements




The Co operative Bank plo.

Accounting policies

(a)

(b}

&)

Basis of preparation and accounting date

The financial statements of the Group relate to the 52 weeks to 8 January 2005. Since the Group accourting date is virtually co-terminous with the
calendar year 2004 the linancial year's figures are headed 2004 and the corresponding figures for the 52 weeks to 10 January 2004 are headed 2003.
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis in accordance with the special provisions of Pant VIl of the Companies Act 1985
relating to Banking Groups. applicable accounting standards and statements of recommended accounting practice issued by the British Bankers’
Association and the Finance and Leasing Association.

The Bank has adopted the transitional provisions of FRS 17, which has not required a change in accounting policy. No accounting policies have
changed during the year.

The financial statements contain information prepared on a basis consistent with the requirements of Schedule 8 to the Companies Act 1985 which
sets out specific requirements regarding the format of the balance sheet and profit and loss account

Debt securities

Held as investment securities

Dated securities are valued at cost, less provision for permanent diminution in value. adjusted for the amorlisation of premiums and discounts in the
purchase price.

Undated securities are valued at the lower of cost, 1ess provision for permanent diminution in value. or market value.

The amortisation of premiums and discounts on dated securities is included in interest income and is calculated to maintain a level yield from the
date of acquisition to maturity.

Realised profits and losses on the sale of debt securities held in designated closed investment porttalios are taken to the profit and loss account
based on the maturity prafile of the portfolic. This treatment has been adopted in order that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
operation of these closed investment portfolios. As a conseguence in this respect, the financial statements depan from the Companies Act 1985, The
normal treatment is to recognise profits and losses as they arise which would result in unrepresentative volatility from a closed portfolio which is
operated as a single long-term financial fixed asset. The ireatment of amortising profits and losses has been adopted to reflect this (see note 12}
Realised profits and losses on the sale of other investment debt securities are taken o the profit and loss account in the year in which
they arise

Held as dealing securities

Securities heid for dealing purposes are stated at market value. Realised and unrealised changes in market value are included in the profit and loss
account within dealing profits/losses.

Loans and advances and doubtful debts

Loan loss provisions. which are charged against operating profit. comprise specific and general provisions. Specific and general provisions are
deducted from toans and advances to customers in the balance sheet.

Specific provisions

Specific provisions are raised when an account is deemed to be impaired and represent the quantification of actual and expected losses from
identified accounts. Other than where provigsions on smaller balance homogenecus loans are assessed on a porfolio basis. the amount of
specific provision raised is assessed on a case by case basis. The amount of specific provision raised is a conservative estimate of the amount
needed 1o reduce the carrying value of the asset to the expected ultimate net realisable value. Loans assessed on a portfolio basis are alocated
into various bands according to delinquency and provision is made against all debts with delinquency greater than a pre-determined trigger
point. The level of provisioning takes into account management's assesement of the portfolic's structure. past and expected credit losses and
any other relevant factors.

Accounting policies
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Accounting policies The Co-operative Bank 01 ¢

In reaching a decision on a case by case basis, consideration is given. among other things. to the following factors.
. the financial standing of the customer. including a realistic assessment of the likelihood of repayment of the loan within an acceplable period;
* the realisable value of any security for the loan; and
. the costs associated with obtaining repayment and realisation of the security,
General provisions
A general provision is maintained based on management's expectations of losses that will be made on assets which are impaired but which have not
been specifically identified as such. Consideration is given 1o the circumstances and level of prudence used in determining the specific provisions.
{ oans on which interest 55 being suspended
Ifthe collection of interest is doubtful. itis credited to a suspended interest account and excluded from interest income in the prefit and loss account.
Although it continues to be charged to the customer's account. the suspense acceunt in the balance sheet is netted against the relevant loan. If the
collection of interest is considered to be remote. interest is no longer applied and suspended interest is written off
Qn receipt of cash (other than from the realisation of security). suspended interest is recovered and taken to the profit and loss accourt as interest
receiahie. Amounts received from the realisation of security are applied to the repayment of outstanding indebtedness. with any surplus used to
recover any specific provisions and then suspended interest
Write off occurs at the point when accounts are no longer actively being collected and itis expected that no more cash will be received.
Revenue and cost recagribion
Fees charged at the inception of the advance which represent a payment for services provided in setting up the advance are credited to the profitand
loss account when they are receivable.
Fees charged at the inception of the advance which represent either a payment for continuing services or an additional interest charge are credited to
the profit and loss account on a straight line basis or a level yield basis as appropriate.
interest earned on loans and advances is credited to the profit and 10ss account as it accrues.
Mortgage incentive costs are charged in the period in which they are incurred
Acquisition Prermium
Premiums paid on the acquisition of credit card and mortgage portfolios are held within other assets and amortised over the estimated economic fife
of the underlying assets on a level yield basis. The resulting amortisation is charged te the profit and loss account.

(d} Sale and repurchase transactions
Secusities which have been sold with an agreement to repurchase continue 10 be shown on the balance sheet and the sale proceads recorded asa
deposit, Securities acaquired in reverse sale and repurchase transactions are not recognised in the balance sheet and the purchase price is treated as
aloan. The difference between the sale price and the repurchase price is accrued evenly over the life of the transaction and charged or credited to the
profit and loss account as interest payable or receivable

(e) Depraclation
Depreciation is provided on a straight ine basis at the following rates which are estimated to write down the assets to realisable values at the end of
their useful lives.

Freehotd and long leasehold buildings 2.5 per cent per annum

Short leasehold buildings life of tease

Equipment 1010 33.3 per cent per annum
vehicles 25 per cent per annum

(f} Assets leased to customers
Finapce leases
Assets leased to customers are included within loans and advances to customers’ and valued at original cost less a charge calculated to write oft
that cost over the primary pericd of the lease.
Income from assets leased to customers is credited to the profit and loss account within “other interest receivable and similar income’ under the
Investment Pericd Method which gives a constant return on the net investment in the lease.
For certain contracts. changes in the rate of Corporation Tax give rise to taxation benefils which are passed on to the lessees as a reduction in rental
payable. A provision for the reduction in lease receivables is charged to profit before tax and the tax benefit reflected as a reduced tax charge. The
provision is released to profit over the pericd of the contract

{9} Leasedassels
Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised. based on the present value of minimum lease payments. Depreciation is provided over the
shaorter of the lease term and the useful economic life. The interest element of the lease payment is charged to the profit and loss account on the
basis of the actuarial method over the primary pericd of the lease. The capital value of the lease is included in the balance sheet as a liability reduced
by the capital element of the lease payments.
Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account ona straight line basis
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h

(i}

@

(k)

o

(m)

)

Deferred laxation

Deferred tax is recognised. without discounting. in respect of all timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting
purpases which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date. except as otherwise required by FRS 19,

Pension costs

In accordance with actuarial advice. pension costs are charged to the profit and loss account to ensure that the regular cost is substantially a level
percentage of the current and anticipated pensionable earnings. Variations from the regular cost are allocated over the average remaining working
lives of current employees.

Exchange rates

Balances in foreign currencies are expressed in starling at the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. All exchange differences are dealt with in the profit
and loss account

Darivatives

Derivatives used for asset and liability rmanagerment purnoses

Derivatives are used to hedge interest and exchange rate exposures related to non-trading pesitions. Instruments used for hedging purposes include
swaps. forward rate agreements. futures, options and combinations of these instruments.

Derivatives used for hedging purposes are measured on an accruals basis consistent with the assets. liabilities. positions or future cash flows being
hedged. The gains and losses on these instruments {arising from changes in fair value) are not recognised in the profit and loss account or balance
sheet as they arise.

To quality as a hedge. a derivative must effectively reduce the price or interest rate risk of the asset, fiability or anticipated position to which it is linked
and be designated as a hedge at inception of the derivative contract.

Positions are matched by time and ameunt to ensure thal the derivatives are effective hedges.

Profits and 1osses on interest rate swaps and options entered into for hedging purposes are measured on an accrual accounting basis. included in
the related category of income and expense and reported as part of the yield on the hedged transaction.

Hedging transactions that are superseded or cease to be effective are measured at fair value, Any profit or loss on these transactions. together with
any profit or loss arising on hedging transactions that are terminated prior 1o the end of the life of the asset, are deferred and amortised into interest
income Or expense over the remaining life of the derivative.

When the underlying asset. liability, position or cash flow is terminated prior to the hedging transaction, or an anticipated transactionis no longer likely
to aeeur. the hedging transaction is measured on the fair value accounting basis. prior to being transternred to the trading portfolio. The profit or loss
arising from the fair value measurement prior to the transfer to the trading porfolic is immediately included in the category of income or expense
relating to the previously hedged transaction.

Derivatives used for trading puposes

Derivatives entersd into for trading purposes include swaps. forward rate agreements. futures. options and combinations of these instruments.
Derivatives used for trading purposes, which include proprietary transactions and customer faciltation. are measured at fair value and any gains or
losses are shown in the profit and loss account as dealing profits/losses. The use of derivatives and their sale to customers as risk management
products is an integral part of the Group's trading activities.

Dealing

Dealing profits comprise the net gain or 10ss arising from trading transactions in securities and financial instruments but exclude any gains or losses
arising from financial fixed assets. Financial fixed assets are those assets intended for use on a centinuing basis in the Bank's activities.

Associated undertakings

An associate is an undertaking in which the group has a long term interest. usually from 20% to 50% of the equity voting rights. and over which it
exercises significant influence. The group’s share of the profits less losses of associates is included in the consolidated profit and loss account and
ite interest in their net assets. including goodwdll. is included in invesiments inthe consalidated balance sheet,

Goodwill

Purchased goodwill (both positive and regative) arising on consclidation in respect of acquisitions before 10 January 1898, when FRS 10 -
Gooedwill and intangible assets was adopted. was written off to reserves in the year of acquisition. When a subseguent disposal occurs any
related goodwill previously written off to reserves is written back through the profit and loss account as part of the profit and loss on disposal.

Accounting policies
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Notes to the financial statements

All amounts are stated in £m unless otherwise indicated

The Co-nperative Bank p Lo

1. Staff costs 2004 2603
Wages and salaries 98.9 955
Social security costs 8.3 82
Other pension costs 18.5 152
Gther staff costs 7.9 79
1346 126.8
2_ Profit on ordinary aclivities before taxation 2004 2003
Is stated alter
{iy Income:
Aggregate amounts receivable. including capital repayments. under
finance leases. hire purchase and conditionaf sale contracts 75.8 711
Income from listed investments 36.0 257
Profits on disposal of investment securities 6.4 59
i) Charges
interest payable in respect of subordinated liabilities 21.0 138
Renlals payab'e in respact of operating leases
hire of computers, equipment and vehicles 1.3 12
other operating leases 12.0 11.4
£'000 £060
Statutory audit services — parent company E167,075 (2003 - £167.075) 255 255
Further assurance services 349 451
Other non-audit senvices 30 18
Fees paid to the auditor 634 724
3. Directors’ emoluments 2004 002
£'000 £000
Non-Executive Directors - -
Executive Directors 735 1.228
735 1.228

Retirement benefits are accruing to seven Directors (2003 - five) under defined benefit schemes

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in the remuneration report on pages 42 1o 45.
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Nctes to the financial statements

Al arourds are stated in Em uniess othemwise ingrcated

4. Penslons

In November 2000 the Accounting Standards Board issued FRS 17, ‘Retirement benefits’. which will replace SSAP 24. ‘Accounting for pension costs’. FRS
17 is not fully effective for the Bank's year ending 8 January 2005, however. certain disclesures are required in the transitional period. The charge ircluded
within the profit and loss account has been calculated in accordance with SSAP 24 and disclosure requirements refating to this charge are set out in part (@)
below. The additional disclosure requirements of FRS 17 are set outin part (b).

a) SSAP 24 disclosures

The Bank operates a funded pension scheme of the defined benefit type. This provides benefits based on final pensionable pay. The assets of the scheme
are held in a separate trustee administered fund.

The Bank also operates a small unfunded pension scherme. The pension charge is assessed in the same manner and using the same assumptions as the
funded scheme except as disclosed on page 45. As at § January 2005. the actuarial valuation of the unfunded pension fiability for obligations in respect of
former directors was £4.5 million (2003 — £1.2 million).

The total pension charge was £19.5 million (2003 — £15.2 millicn). The pension charge is assessed in accordance with the advice of a qualified actuary
using the projected unit method. The latest valuation of The Co-operative Bank Pension Schema was carried out as at 5 Aprit 2003 by a qualified actuary
employed by Co-operative Insurance Society Limited. The assumptions which have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating
0 the rate of return used to discount the liabilities and the rates of increase In salaries and pensions. For the purpose of the valuation. it was assumed that
the discount rate would average 6.5% per annum. that wage increases would average 4.0% per annum. and that present and future pensions would
increase at an average rate of 2 5% per annum.

At the date of the valuation. the market value of the Scheme's assets was £231.0 million and was sufficient to cover 81% of the benefits that had accrued to
members, after allowing for future increases in earnings. The deficiency is being amortised in the Bank's accounts over the remaining expected service
lives of the current members. The average expected service lives of the current members is approximately 12 years.

The Bank makes contributions 1o the Scheme at a rate designed to meet the cost of all benetits provided by the scheme (other than those provided by
members through the payment of voluntary contributions). Following the full actuarial review of the funded scheme at 5 Aprit 2003. the contribution rate of
pensionable salaries was increased from 15.6% to 22% from 3 April 2004. In addition a one-off contribution of £14.4 million was paid into the scheme in
December 2004. The ongoing contribution rate of 22% includes the cost of future service and the cost of the past service deficit in the scheme amortised
cver the remaining expected service lives of current members. In the year ended 8 January 2005, total contributions of £32.2 milllon were paid into the
scheme including Bank contributions and employee contributions. New employees who joined the scheme from 1 July 2004 contribute 8% of pensionable
salary with contributions from existing staft being phased in from 2005 over the next 3 years. The balance i3 contributed by the Bank

The amount paid inte the fund (£32 2 million) exceeds the amount charged in the profit and loss account (£19.5 million) by £12.7 millien (2003 - profit and
loss charge exceeded amount paid by £1.0 million) resulting in a prepayment of £7.3 million (2003 — accrual of £5.4 million). which includes the unfunded
pension liability of £4.5 million {2003 - £1.2 milficn).

The actuaries to the scheme are employed by Co-operative Insurance Society Limited a fellow subsidiary undertaking of Co-operative Financial
Services Limited.

b) FRS 17 disclosures
The actuarial valuation noted in part (&) above has been updated to 8 January 2005. The principal assumptions used to calculate the Schemes’ llabilities were:

2004 2003 2002
Inflation rate 2.7% 2.8% 23%
Rate of increase of pensions in payment 2.7% 2.8% 2.3%
Rate of increase in salaries 4.2% 4.3% 38%
Discount rate 5.1% 5.3% 5.4%

The assumptions used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions which. due to the timescale covered.
may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

The present valug of the scheme liabilities is derived from cash flow projections over long periods and is sensitive to the principal assumptions shown
above. As an indication of the sensitivity. a 0.3 percentage point moverment in the discount rate would have an effect on the surplus or deficit of
approximately £34 million and a 0.3 percentage point movement in the rate of increase in salaries would have an effect on the surplus or deficit of
approximately £10 million
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4. Pensions (continued)

The values of the assets and liabilities of the scheme and the expectad rate on those assets were:

2004
£m k3 £

fquities 2438 7.5 262.0
Bonds 102.8 4.5 277

346.6 2887
Present value of Scheme liabilities {450.3) (431.3)
Surplus/{deficity in the Scheme {103.7} (141.8)
Related deferred tax asset 34 425
Net pension asset/{liability) (72.8) 99.1}

2003

7.3
48

£m
211.7
216

2333
(340.9)

(107 6}
323

{75.3)

2002

70
43

The amount of this net pension lrability would reduce reserves by £81.5 million after slimination of the existing post-tax prepayment of £8.9 million {pre-tax -

2127 million).

Had the Bank fully adopted FRS 17 at the year end. the profit and loss account disclosures would have been stated as follows:

Analysis of amount charged lo operating profit

Current service cost
Past service cost

Analysis of amount credited (o other financial income

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme liabilities

Net return
The mavement in delicil during the year was as follows:

Deficit at beginning of the year
Movement in the year

Current service cost
Contributions

Past service costs

Other finance income
Actuarial gain/{loss)

Deficit in scheme at the end of the year
Analysis of amount recogrised in statement ol fotal recogrised gains and fosses (STAGL)

Actual return less expected return on pension Scheme assets
Experience gains/{losses) arising on the Scheme fiabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the Scheme liabilities

Actuarial gainf{loss) recognised in STRGL

History of experience gains and losses

Difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets: (% of Scheme assets)
Experience gains/{losses) on scheme liabilities: (% of the present value of the Scheme liabilities)
Tetal amount recognised in STRGL: (% of the present value of the Scheme liabilities)

2004
£m

21.8

21.8

20.8
23.2)

(2.9)

(141.6)

21.8)
a2z
(2.4)
299

(103.7)

10.6
328
(13.5)

29.9

2004
Em % €m

106 31 327

328 7.3 5.9
209 66 (96.8)

(84.2)
.1}
(103.5)

16.0
(18.7)

@7

(107.8)

(187
142

@n
{26.9)

{141.6)

327
59
(65.4)

(26.8)




The Co-operative Bank p L.c

Noties to the financiai statements

Aff amounis are stated in Em unless otherwise indicated

5. Taxation on profit on ordinary activities

a} Analysis of charge in perigd

Current tax

UK Corporation tax on profits of the period
Adjustments in respect of previous periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of timing differences
Tota! deferred tax

Tax on profit on ordinary activities

by Eactors affecting tax charge for the period

The actual tax charge for the year differs from that calculated using the standard rate of corporate tax in the UK. The differences are explained below:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Profit on ordinary activities before tax at the standard rate of UK Corporation tax {30%)

Effects of:

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes

Difference between depreciation and capital allowances for period and other timing differences
Depreciation of expenditure not qualifying for capital allowances

Sheftered capital gains

Non taxable income

Adjustrments to tax charge in respect of previous periods

Current tax charge for the year

2004 2003
£ £m
36.1 380
0.2 -
36.3 380
33 11
33 11
39.6 39.1
2004 2003
£m em
132.0 130.1
33.86 390
0.4 a2
a7 (1)
0.2 02
- ©3)
{0.4) -
0.2 -
36.3 38.0

6. Group profit for the financial year dealt with in the accounts of The Co-operative Bank p.1.¢.

£88.0 million (2003 - £86.1 milicn} of the Group profit for the tinancial year atributable to shareholders has been dealt with in the accounts of
The Co-cperative Bank p.i.c.. As permitted by Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985. the profit and loss accourt of The Co-operative Bank p.l.c. has not

been presentad separately.

7. Dividends 2004 2003 2004 2303
pence pence
per share per zhare £m e
Dividend on 60.000.000 9.25%
non-cumulative iredeemable
preference shares of £1 each
(paid and proposed) 9.25p 9.25p 5.5 55
Dividend on 1.100.000.000
[2003 - 700.000.000)
ardinary shares of 5peach
- paid 1.36p 2 86p 15.0 200
- proposed 0.45p - 50 -
1.81p 2.86p 20.0 200
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8, Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit for the financial year £80.2 mitlion (2003 - £88.9 million) less dividends on preference shares
£5.5 millien (2003 - £5.5 million) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 1,100 million (2003 - 727.5 million] inissue during the year.

9. Loans and advances to banks

Group Bank
2004 #0073 2004 2002

Remafning maturity:
over 5 years 9.6 7.2 9.6 72
1 year or less but over 3 months 100.0 5.0 100.0 5.0
3 manths or less but not repayable
an demand 958.9 7608 958.9 780.8
Repayable on demand 4.5 0.2 4.5 0.2

1,073.0 7732 1,073.0 7732
10. Loans and advances to customers Group Bank

2004 2003 2004 2003

Remaining maturity
over Syears 3,569.8 25003 3,503.5 24308
5 years or less but over 1 year 1,914.2 1.807.6 1,883.6 1.761.0
1 year or less but over 3 months 657.2 577.9 649.5 567.0
3 months cr less but not repayable
ondemand 931.3 844.3 983.6 925.6
Repayable on demand 657.1 539.3 841.7 5230
General and specific bad and doubtful
debt provisions (note 11) (116.2) {134.5) (115.5) (133.4)
Suspended interest provisions (0.3} {1.1} - {0.8)

76131 6.133.8 7,546.4 8.073 2
Amounts include
Due from subsidiary undertakings
unsubordinated 52.4 a1.2
Bue from parent undertakings 10.2 21 10.2 21
Due from fellow subsidiary undertakings 63 6.2 6.3 62

Analysis of concentration of exposure is provided in note 33(i) on page 80
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11. Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Group:

At 10 January 2004
Acquisitions

Charge against profits
Amounts written off
Recoveries

At 8 January 2005

Bank:

At 10 January 2004
Acquisitions/transfers
Charge against profits
Amounts written off
Recoveries

At 8 January 2005

All pravisions are held against loans and advances to customers.

Non-performing debt:

Group advances
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

Bank advances
Provisions for bad and doubtful debts

2004 2003

Specific General Total Sozcike Gerera Total
126.2 3.3 134.5 180.3 54 1857
- - - 53 - 53
64.3 (1.5} 62.8 60.4 2.9 633
(81.3) - (81.3) (120.1) - (1204
0.2 - 0.2 0.3 - 03
109.4 6.8 116.2 126.2 83 1345
125.4 8.0 133.4 175.5 5.2 180.7
0.2 - 0.2 53 - 5.3
64.1 (1.5) 62.6 61.5 28 843
{80.8) - {80.8) {117.2) - {117.2)
0.1 - 0.1 03 - 03
109.0 6.5 115.5 1254 8.0 133.4
136.5 1245

{82.7) {80.7)

53.8 338

1351 122.8

(82.3) {60.9)

52.8 329
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12, Debl securities

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
Balance Market Balance Markel Balance Market aance Market
sheet value cheet vale sheat value sheet vaile
{i] Issue
Issued by public bodies
Investment securities
government securities 24.2 28.0 2804 283.7 24.2 28.0 2803 2836
ather public sector securities 13.7 16.2 13.7 16.4 13.7 16.2 13.7 16.4
37.9 44,2 294.1 300.1 379 a4.2 294.0 3000
Cther securities
government securities - 502 - 50.2
3r9 3443 378 344.2
Issued by other issuers
nvestment securities
bank and building society
certificates of deposit 655.0 654.6 381.0 383.5 356.5 355.8 151.0 151.0
other debt securities 453.5 454.7 560.1 5617 4535 454.7 560.1 561.7
1,108.5 1,109.3 9411 2452 810.0 B10.5 711 7127
Other securities
bank and building society
certificates of deposit 530.4 8003 530.4 800.3
1,638.9 1.741.4 1,340.4 1.511.4
1,676.8 20857 1,378.3 1.B55.6
Unamortised profit on sales
of investment securities - {5.8) - {5.6)
1,676.8 20799 1,378.3 1.850.0
{ii) Matyriy
Due within 1 year 1,022.5 1.489.4 T24.0 1.259.4
Due 1 year and over 654.3 5096.3 654.3 596.2
1,676.8 20857 1,378.3 1.855.6
Unamortisect profit on sales
of investment securities - (5.8) - (5.6)
1,676.8 20799 1,378.3 18500
Unamortised prermiums on
investment securities 1.3 30 1.3 30
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12. Debt Securities {continued)

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 A28
Balance Market Balansa Markel Balance Market Balarce Markel
shest value sheet valug sheet value shaet valag
{iiy Listing
nvestment securities
listed on a recognised UK
exchange 242.0 249.0 8131 620.2 242.0 24%.0 613.0 620.1
listed elsewhere 248.7 247.3 238.4 238.9 246.7 247.3 238.4 23849
unlisted 657.7 657.2 383.7 386.2 358.2 358.4 153.7 1537
1,146.4 11535 12352 12453 84749 854.7 10081 1q127
Unamortised profit on
sales of investment
securities - (5.8 - (5.6}
1,146.4 12204 847.9 989.5
Other securities
listed on a recognised UK
exchange - 50.2 - 50.2
unlisted 530.4 800.3 530.4 800.3
530.4 850.5 5304 850.5
1,676.8 2,079.9 1,378.3 1.850.0
Cost DI it L d Canrying
and premiums profit on sales value
(iv) Movement
Investment securities
Group:
At 10 January 2004 1,249.0 (13.8) {5.8) 1,229.4
Acquisitions 951.8 - - 951.8
Oisposals and maturities {1,042.9) 6.6 - {1,036.3)
Exchange adjustments - 2.9 - {2.9)
Amortisation - (1.49) 5.8 4.4
At 8 January 2005 1,157.9 {11.5) - 1,186.4
Bank:
At 10 January 2004 1,018.9 {13.8) {5.6) 989.5
Acquisitions 431.3 - - 431.3
Disposals and maturities {590.8) 6.6 - {584.2)
Exchange adjustments - {2.9) - {2.9)
Amoertisation - {1.4) 5.6 4.2
At 8 January 2005 859.4 {11.5) - 847.9

The exchange adjustment of £2.9 million represents the revaluation of debt securilies held in a currency other than sterling. These are hedged by deposits
of equal value held in the same currency. The net gain on these transactions due to foreign exchange revatuation is nil

Group

Profits on disposals in the year were £0.6 million {2003 - £nil), However. due to the application of accounting policy (b} relating 1o securities held in
designated investment portfolios. £6.4 million (2003 — £5.9 million) has been credited to the profit and loss account. The application of this accounting
policy therefore increased profits for the year by £6.8 mililon {2003 — £5.9 million}

Bank

Profits on disposals in the vear were £0.6 million {2003 — £nil). However. due to the application of accounting policy (b) relating to securities held in
designated investment portfolios. £6.2 million (2003 - £5.6 mitlion) has been credited to the profit and loss account. The application of this accounting
policy theretore increased profits for the year by £5.8 million (2003 - £5.6 million).
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13. Equity shares

Investment securities - unlisted

Included above are the following trade investments:

BACS Limited 92,425 (2003 — 83.568} ordinary shares of £1 each
LINK Interchange Network Limited 3,845 (2003 - 3.845) ordinary shares of £1 each
and 78,396 (2003 — 78.396€) ordinary shares of £0.01 each

All unlisted securities are valued by the Directors at cost. net of provisions raised.

Group and Bank

At 10 January 2004 and at 8 January 2005

Group and Bank
2009 2003
1.2 12

Grouyp and Bank
2004 2203
0.7 J6
0.4 04
141 10

Cost and carmying value

1.2

14, Intarasts in associated undertakings and joint ventures

The interests in associated undertakings and joint ventures, all of which are incorporated in Graat Britain and operate in England and none of which is quoted. are:

Joint ventures

Ochil Besidential Limited

—

Unity Financial Holdings Limited

wn

Unity Pension Services

wn

Unity Financial Services Limited

o

Jacques Martin Unity Limited

w —+

Nature of
business

Property development/
house building

Holding company

Marketing of
pension plans

Marketing of
financial services

Administration
of pension schemes

The interest in joirt vertures is made up as fotows:

At10 January 2004

At 8 January 2005

Totalissued share
capital at § January 2005

2 Ordinary shares of €1 each

100 Ordinary shares of £1 each

2 Ordinary shares of £1 each

1.000.000 Ordinary shares of £1 each

1.000.000 Crdinary shares of £1 each

Unity Trust Bank p | ¢. holds 50% of the ordinary share capital of this company
Unity Financial Holdings Limited holds 100% of the ordinary share capitai of this company

Shara of Share of
gross assots gross liabilities
0.3 01

0.2 -

Group
interest
2004

50%

13%

13%

13%

13%

Group

Share of
netagsels

0.2

0.2

Grop
irterest
2003

50%

13%

13%

13%

13%

Bank

Cost
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15. Ultimate holding organisation and subsidiary undertakings

Co-operative Financial Services Limited owns 100% of the issued owdinary share capital of the Bank and is the Bank's immediate holding company
Co-operative Financial Services Limited is incorporated in Great Britain and is registered under the Industrial and Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1878
The ultimate holding organisation is the Co-operative Group (CWS) Limited. which is incorporated in Great Britain and is registered under the Industrial and
Provident Societies Acts 1965 to 1978. The financial statements of the immediate and ultimate holding organisations are available from New Century
House. Manchester MB0 4ES. The principal operating subsidiaries of The Co-operative Bank p.Lc.. all of which are incorporated in Great Britain and
operate in England. and none of which are quoted, are:

Operating subsidiaries Mature of business Total issued share Group Groud
capital at 8 January 2005 intarest nrarest
2004 2003
= Unity Trust Bank p.i.c Banking 16.428.460 Ordinary shares of £1 each 27% 27%
Co-cperative Commercial Investment company 1.000.000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limited
Roodhill Leasing Leasing 2 Qrcinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limnited
First Roodhill Leasing Leasing 100 Crdinary shares of €1 each 100% 100%
Limited
Second Reodhill Leasing Leasing 100 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limited
Third Rogdhill Leasing Leasing 100 Ordlinary shaves of £1 gach 100% 100%
Limited
Fourth Roodhill Leasing Leasing 100 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limited
First Pioneers Leasing Leasing 100 Ordlinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limited
Second Pioneers Leasing Leasing 100 Crdinary shares of €1 gach 100% 100%
Limited
Third Pioneers Leasing Leasing 100 Crdinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%
Limited
Co-operative Bank Financial advisers 100,000 Ordinary shares of £1 each 100% 100%

Financial Advisers Limited

* Held through subsidiary undertaking

Shares in Group undertakings Bank
Cost Provision Carrying
value
At 8 January 2005 and at 10 January 2004 16 (0.4} 12

The above provision is held against dormant subsidiaries.
Details of ail Group companies will be annexed to the Bank's next annuai return.

Unity Trust Bank p.l.¢. is considered to be a subsidiary undertaking of The Co-operative Bank p.l.c. as The Co-operative Bank p.l.c. elects a majority of the
Directors and appaints the Chair and Managing Director of Unity Trust Bank p.l.c.

The financial statements of the above undertaking are consolidated into the Group financial statermnents.

The following undertakings have year ends which are not co-terminaus with that of The Ca-operative Bank p.l.¢ to enable competitive leasing quotations to
be offered throughout the year:

31stMarch First Piongers Leasing Limited
30th June Second Pioneers Leasing Limited
30th September Third Pioneers Leasing Limited

The financial statements of these undertakings are consolidated into the Group financial statements on the basis of management accounts made up 1o the
parent undertaking's balance sheet date.
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16. Tangible flxed assets

Group:

Cost

At 10 January 2004
Additions
Disposals

At 8 January 2005

Accumulated depreciation

At 10 January 2004
Disposals
Charge for the year

Al'8 January 2005

Net book valug at § January 2005
Net book value at 10 January 2004
Bank:

Cost

At 10 January 2004

Additions
Disposals

At 8 January 2005

Accumulated depreciation

A 10 January 2004
Disposals
Charge for the year

At 8 January 2005

Net book value at 8 January 2005

Net book value at 10 January 2004

The net book value of land and buitdings comprises:
Freghold
Short leasehold

Allland and buildings are occupied by the Group for its own activities.

Freehold Computer Total
and leagehold and other
buildings equipment
10.3 2181 228.4
- 24.9 249
- @&.1) (8.1}
10.3 234.9 245.2
2.2 134.3 136.5
- 8.0} (8.0)
0.3 224 227
2.5 148.7 151.2
7.8 86,2 94.0
8.1 83.8 919
2.8 214.8 217.6
- 24.8 24.8
- (7.8) (7-8)
2.8 231.8 234.6
0.8 132.2 133.0
- (.7 @.7)
041 21.9 22.0
0.9 146.4 147.3
19 85.4 87.3
2.0 826 34.6
Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
7.8 89 1.9 1.9
- 01 - 0.1
7.8 8.1 1.8 20

Included within tangible fixed assets are finance leased assets. At 8 January 2005. the net book value of these assets was £nil (2003 - £nil)
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17. Other assels Group Bank
2004 20032 2004 2003
Unrealised gains on foreign exchange and interest rate
contracts 28.2 388 28.2 388
Trade dettors 4.2 86 3.9 66
Defarred taxation {see note 223 - - - 0.8
Other assets 9.3 119 2.3 11.9
41.7 59.3 41.4 58.1

Other assets are acquisition premium of £9.3 million (2003 - £11.9 millian) relating to the purchase of credit card and mortgage portiolios.

18. Deposits by banks Group Bank

2004 2003 2004 2003
With agreed maturity dates or pericds
of notice. by remaining maturity

1 year or less but over 3 months 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
3 months or less but not repayable
on demand 593.8 7346 606.0 738.4
Repayable on demand 52.4 344 52.4 344

647.2 770.0 659.4 7738
Amgunts include:
Due to subsidiary undertakings 12.2 38
19. Customer accounts Group Bank

2004 2008 2004 2003

With agreed maturity dates or periods
of notice. by remaining maturity:

5years or less but over 1 year 58.6 87.1 585 87.0

1 year or less but over 3 months 131.3 60.7 141.0 807

3 months o less but not repayable

on demand 2,224.9 2.103.6 2,124.1 20219

Repayable on demand 5,673.9 51340 §,454.9 49566
8,098.7 7.385.4 17,7785 71262

Amounts include:
Due to subsidiary undertakings

Due 1o parent undertakings 1.7 i 1.7 17
Due to fetlow subsidiary undertakings 52.3 629 52.3 62.3
Dug 1o associated undertakings 0.4 0.4 - -
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20. Debt securities in issue

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
Bonds anc Medium Term Notes
By remaining maturity
S years or less but over 2 years 299.8 - 299.8
Gther debt securities in issue
By remaining maturity:
1 year or less but aver 3 months 56.4 70 56.4 70
3 months orless 415.8 217.7 415.5 217.7
ra i 2247 7.7 2247
21. Other liabilities Group Bank
2004 2053 2004 2003
Unrealised losses on toreign exchange and interest rate
contracts 259 368 25,9 366
Trade creditors 83.0 694 81.9 681
Taxation 23.5 208 21.6 18.7
Dividends 6.4 14 5.6 0.7
138.8 1280 135.0 1241
22, Provisions for liabilities and chargas
Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
(1) Deterr ion
Bhort term differences {0.5) (0.8} (0.6) 0.7)
Other timing differences 3.3) (8.3) (3.2) 6.2)
Capital allowances on fixed assets 3.2 29 2.7 2.4
Capital allowances on assels leased
to customers 13.8 140 5.6 37
131 98 4.5 " (08)
The moverent in the deferred taxation
balance has all taken place through the
profit and loss account 3.3 11 5.3 1.7

The potential liability on rolled over gains and other gains not provided for. amounts to £1.6 million (2003 - £1.0 million). Full provision has been made for

ail other potential liabilities to deferred taxation.

* The net deferred taxation position for The Co-operative Bark p Lc. for 2003 gave rise to a deferred tax aseet. This was recognised in the balance sheet of

The Co-operative Bank pl.c. and appears within Other assets {see note 17).
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22, Provisions for llabilities and charges (continued)

{iiy Qther provisions Group Bank

2004 2003 2004 2003
At 10 January 2004 7.7 115 6.9 99
Utilised 2.3) 4.7 2.1 3.9)
Profitand loss charge 1.5 R} 1.2 09
AL 8 January 2005 6.9 77 6.0 6.2

The above provisions at 8 January 2005 include an estimate of future unavoidable lease payments and related costs for vacant properties notin use (group
—£4.9 million. Bank - £4.4 million) and an estimate of future payments to customers in compensation for loss suffered from past pension and investment
advice {group - £2.0 million. Bank —£1.6 million).

Payments under future unavoidable lease commitments. net of amounts receivabie under sub-lettings. are due on leases terminating between 2006 and
2016, Payments relating to past pension and investment advice will be made as individual cases are seffied. The amounts provided in respect of
compensation are based on a case by case review of expected payment for each outstanding claim and an estimate of the number and vaiue of future
claims based on past experience.

23. Subordinated liabilities Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
£50.000.000 Fixed Rate Perpetual Subordinated Notes 50.0 500 0.0 504
£30,000.000 Subordinated Perpetual Floating Rate Notes 30.0 300 30.0 300
£100.000.000 Step Up Callable Subordinated Notes 2011 100.0 100.0 100.0 1000
£150.000.000 Step up Callable Subordinated Notes 2019 150.0 - 150.0 -
Issue costs and discount (2.4) 0.8) 2.4} ©.8)
327.6 1782 327.6 179.2

Rermaining maturity of dated subordinated labilities
Repayable
qver five years 250.0 100.0 250.0 100.0

Fixed Rate Perpetual $Subordinated Notes
The notes were issued on 20 December 1985 at a discount ot 0.723%

The notes are an unsécured obligation of the Bank and in the event of the winding-up of the Bank, the claims of noteholders will be suberdinated in rignt of
payment 1o the claims of depositors and other creditors of the Bank.

The notes carry an interest rate of 9.375% per annum to (but excluding} 21 December 2005. Fram this date and on 20 December in every lifth year thereafter
the interast rate will be determined by reference to the gross redemption yield on the five year benchmark giit. and a margin of 2.70%. Interest is payable
annually in arrears on 20 December each year.

The Bank may redeem afl or part of he notes at their principal amount on 21 December 2005 and thereafier on every fith Fixed Interest Date (20 Decernber).
Bubordinated Perpetual Floating Rate Notes

The notes were issugd on 9 January 18998

The notes are an unsecured obligation of the Bank and in the event of the winding-up cf the Bank. the claims of noteholders will be subardinated in right of
payment to the claimg of depositors and other creditors of the Bank

The notes carry an annual interest rate of 1.18% above six months LIBOR up to (but excluding) 9 January 2008. Thereafter the notes camy an annyal interast
rate of 2.18% above six months LIBOR. Interest is payable half yearly in arrears on 9 January and 8 July each year.

The Bank may redeem all but not less than all of the notes at their principal amount on 9 January 2008 and thereafter on any following 2 Jaruary or 9 July.
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23, Subordinated liabilities {continued)
Step Up Callable Subordinated Notes 2011
The notes were issued on 16 November 2000 at a discount of 0.472%

The notes are an unsecured obligation of the Bank and in the event of the winding-up of the Bank. the claims of noteholders will be subordinated in right of
payment to the claims of depositors and other creditors of the Bank.

The nates carry an annual interest rate of 7.375% per annum to (but excluding) 16 Novernber 2006. and thereafter the interest rate wilt be determined by reference to
the gross redemption yield on the five year benchmark gitt. and a margin of 2.5%. Interest is payable half yearly in arrears on 16 May and 16 November.

The Bank may redeem ali. but not less than all of the notes at their principai amount on 16 November 20086.
Step Up Callable Subordinated Notes 2019
The notes were issued on 1 April 2004 at a discount of 0.946%

The notes are an unsecured obligation of the Bank and in the event of the winding-up of the Bank. the claims of noteholders will be subordinated in right of
payment to the claims of depaesitors and other creditors of the Bank.

The notes carry an annual interest rale of 5.875% per annum to (but excluding) 2 April 2014, and thereafter the interest rate will be determined by
reference 1o the gross redemption yield on the five year benchmark gilt, and a margin of 2 25% . Interest is payable annually in arrears on 2 April

The Bank may redeem all. but not less than all of the netes at their principal amount on 2 April 2014,

N early repayment, which includes the purchase of the notes or stock by the Group for cancellation, of any of the above subordinated liabilitias can be
made without the prior written agreement of the Financial Services Authority.

24, Share capital 2004 2003

Authorised

1.100.000.000 ordinary shares of 5p each 535.0 55.0

75.000.000 9.25% non-cumulative iredeematble preference shares

of £1 each 75.0 750
130.0 130.0

Issued

1.100.000.000 ordinary shares of 5p each 55.0 550

£0.000 000 9.25% non-cumulative iredeemabie preference shares

of £1 each 60.0 60.0
115.0 1159

All the issued share capital has been allotied. called up and fully paid.

The preference shares carry the right to a fixed non-cumulative preferential dividend on the capital for the time being paid up. at the rate of 9.25% per annum
exclusive of any associated tax credit. The dividends are payable on 31 May and 30 November each year and take priority over dividends to any other class of
share in the capital of the Bank.

On a return of capital on a winding-up. the assets of the Bank shall be applied in repaying the preference share capital in priority 10 any payments to the
holders of any other class of shares in the ¢apital of the Bank. The amount receivable by the holders of the preference shares shall be the greater of the
capital paid up or the average quoted price during the three months immediately preceding the date of the notice convening the meeting to consider the
regaiution to wind-up.

The holders of the preference shares shall have the right to vote at a general meeting of the Bank only if and when. at the date of the notice convening the
meeting. the dividend due to them has been in arrears for six menths or more or if a resalution is tc be proposed at the meeting abrogating or varying their
rights or privileges or for the winding-up of the Bank or other return of ¢apital and then only on that resolution.
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25. Reserves

Share premium account at 8 fanuary 2005
and at 10 January 2004

Profit and loss account at 10 January 2004
Retained profit/{loss) for the financial year

Profit and loss account at 8 January 2005

The cumulative amount of goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings prior to 1998, net of goodwill attributed to subsidiary undertakings

disposed of is £247,000 {2003 - £247 000).

Bank Associated Group Bank
and subsidiary undertakings
undertakings
8.8 - 8.8 8.8
493.3 {1.1) 492.2 475.2
64.7 - 64.7 62,5
558.0 (1.1} 556.9 537.7

26. Miscellaneous

(i) Assets andliabilities
Denominated in sterling
Denominated in currencies other
than sterling

Total assets
Denominated in sterling

Cenominated in currencies other
than sterling

Total liabilities
{ii) Assets subjectto sale and
repurchase transactions

Debt securities

il

Assets leased to customers
Leans and advances to customers —
Finance feases and hire purchase contracts

Assets acquired during the year

Group Bank
2004 2003 2004 2003
10,430.3 91039 10,048.6 8.7194.2
449.0 374.1 449.0 374.1
10,879.3 9.478.0 10,498.6 9.1633
10,439.4 9.106.3 10,058.7 8.796.6
439.9 371.7 438.9 377
10,879.3 9.478.0 10,498.6 9.188.3
- 102.4 - 1024
219.5 2130 151.6 118.0
70.3 54.0 86.4 451
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27. Contingent liabilities and commitments

The tables below give. for the Group and the Bank. the nominal principal amounts. credit equivalent amounts and risk weighted amounts of contingent
liabilities and commitments. The nominal principal amounts indicate the volume of business cutstanding at the balance sheet date and do not represent
amaounts at risk. The credit equivalent and risk weighted amounts have been calculated In accordance with the FSA guidelines implementing the Solvency
Ratio Directive on capital adequacy.

2004 2003
Credit Average Rigk R3k
Contract equivalent risk waeighted Cortract waightzd
amount amount (i) waight amount amcunt armaunt
Group:
Contingent Liabilities
Acceplances and endorsements 375 375 100.0% 375 375 363
Guarantess and irevocable letters
of credit 66.9 56.1 95.5% 53.6 61.3 48.7
104.4 91.1 98.8 85.0
Bank:
Contingent Liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 375 37.5 100.9% 375 375 36.3
Guarantees andirrevocable letters
af credit 66.1 85.7 95.5% 63.2 81.1 486
103.6 80.7 98.6 848
Group:
Other commitments
Documentary credits and short-term
trade-related transaclions 1.6 0.3 94.0% 0.3 42 08
Undrawn tarmal standby facilities.
credit lings and other commitments
tolend:
1 year and over 379.1 189.6 99.1% 187.8 2381 1159
less than 1 year (i) 5,876.8 - - - 6.150.2 -
6,257.5 188.1 53825 1167
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27. Contingent Eabilities and commitments (continued)

Bank:

Other commitments

Documentary credits and short-term
trade-retated transactions

Undrawn formal standby facilities,
credit lines and other cormmitments
to lend:

1 year and aver

less than 1 year (i)

Caontract
amount

16

37941
5,865.0

6,245.7

Notes:

Credit
equivalent
amount {i}

0.3

189.6

2004
Average

weight

94.0%

99.1%

2002
Risk Sigk
weighted Cointract weighted
amount amzunt arcunt
0.3 42 08
187.8 2381 159
- 6.146.3 -
188.1 6.388.6 116.7

(i} Under the Solvency Ratio Directive. credit equivalent amounts. obtained by appiying credit conversion factors. are risk weighted accarding to

counterparty.

(i) Undrawn loan commitments which are unconditionally cancellable at any time or which have a maturity of less than one year have a risk weighting of
zero. Thisitem consists largely of undrawn credit card facilities.

28, Denivatives and other financial instruments

The Group's objectives and policies in managing the risks that arise in connection with the use of financial instruments are set out on pages 23 to 25 of the
operating and financial review under 'risk management’, financial instruments’ and 'derivatives’. This section in the operating and financial review farms

part of the notes to the financial statements.

(i} Rigk profiles

Interest rate sensifivity gap

The table below summarises the repricing periods for the assets and liabilities in the Group's non-trading book. Items are allocated to time bands by
reference o the earlier of the next contractual interest rate repricing date and the maturity date.

8 January 2005 Over3months  Qwers months Over1 year
Within but within but within but within More than Non-interest Trading

3 manths £ months 1 year 5years S yearg bearting book Total
Assets
Loans and advances o banks 962 100 - - - 11 - 1,073
Loans and advances o customers 5,499 172 295 1,338 309 - - 7,613
Debt securities and equity shares 470 102 243 307 28 - 530 1,678
Other assets 280 - - - - 188 47 515
Loans to trading book 451 80 - - - 7 {538) -
Total assets 7,662 454 538 1,645 335 206 39 10,879
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 6449 - 1 2 - - - Ba7
Customer accounts 6,394 50 95 232 - 1,328 - 8,099
Debt securities in issue 715 52 5 - - - - 772
Other liabilties - - - - - 292 39 N
Loan capital 30 - 50 100 150 2) - 328
Minarity interests and
sharehalders' funds - - - - &0 642 - 702
Total iabiities 7,783 102 151 334 210 2,260 39 10,879
Off balance sheet items (455) (275} {11} 656 85 - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap (876) 77 376 1,967 210 {2,054) -
Cumulative gap (576) {499) {123) 1,844 2,054 - -
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28. Derivatw and other fi ial i 1ts (continued)
10 caruary 2004 Ower 3 menths Ower & months Qver * year
Witkin but withir put within but withir Maore tran Non-riterest Tract 9y

amanths & months 1yzar 5 yEars Syears bzanng Lot Trtal
Assels
Loans and advances 1o banks 760 5 - - - 8 - 773
Loans and advances 1o customers 4.234 217 224 1.201 258 - - 6.134
Debt securities and equity shares 528 349 256 44 56 - as0 2081
Other assets 261 - - - - 209 20 490
Laans ta trading book 286 145 425 - - 5 (861} -
Total assets 8.067 716 05 1.245 314 222 9 3478
L:abilities
Deposits by banks 769 1 - - - - 770
Customer accounts 5.900 26 38 188 - 1.233 - 7.385
Cebt secuiities in issue 218 1 B - - - 225
Other liabilities - - - - - 274 9 283
Loan capital - 30 - 150 - A - 179
Minority interests and
shareholders’ funds - - - - &0 576 - 636
Total habilities 6.887 58 44 338 80 2.082 9 9.478
Oft balance sheet items (616) 359) (100) 943 {68y - -
Interest rate sensitivity gap (1,436} 299 961 1.850 186 {1.860) -
Cumulative gap (1.436) (1130 {176} 1.674 1.860 - -

The period end position shown above is regarded as materially representative of the Group's position throughout the year and reflects the Bank Group
policies on risk management, subject to the following comments

The gap analysis disclosed reflects contractual repricing in accordance with accounting standards.

Interest free current account balances are included in the ‘non-interest bearing” maturity band.

The Bank Group's asset and liability policies reflect the historical stability of customer accounts
Currency exposure

At 8 January 2005 the Group's open position was £2.1 miflion {2003 - £1.8 million) representing & potential loss of £0.06 millkan given a 3% appreciation
in sterling (2003 - loss of £0.06 million given a depreciation in sterling).

Trading value at risk
The Group's approach to monitoring and controlling market risk is set out on pages 23 o 25 of the operating and financial review.

At 8 January 2005. total Treasury VaR of £6.3 million (2003 - £0.3 million) represents the maximum potential daily gain or loss in market rates within a
confidence level of 95% based on recent market performance, The average. highest and lowest VaR. as calculated on a daily basis, for the accounting
period ended 8 January 2005 were £0.5 million {2003 - £0.6 million}, £1.3 million (2003 - £1.2 million) and £0.2 millien (2003 — £0.2 million)

(i) Derivatives

The Bank has entered into various off balance sheat financial instruments (derivatives) as principal either as a trading activity, which includes proprietary
rransaclions and customer facifitation. or as a hedging activity for the management of interest rate risk and foreign exchange rate risk

Positive and negative fair values have not been netted as the Bank does not have tegal right of offset. All derivatives were held by the Bank

Detivatives held for trading purposes

The trading transactions are wholly interast rate related contracts including swaps, caps and floors. forward rate agreements and exchange traded
futures. Trading transactions include derivatives where the Bank enters into a transaction to accommuodate a customer logether with the coresponding
hedge transaction.

The Co-cperative Bank p.l .
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28. Derivatives and other financial instruments (continued)

At the year end. the notional principal amounts and fair value of the Bank's trading derivatives were as follows:

intergsi rate refated transactions

interest rate swaps
Interest rate caps and floors
Futures

2004 2003
Notional Netonal
principal Fair value Fair value prozipal Sairvalle sairvalua
amount asset liability amaunt aagel by
4,949.5 8.1 9.3 100945 16.7 15.9
147.0 0.5 0.5 1538 08 0.6
3,250.0 - - 3.100.0 - -
8,346.5 9.6 9.8 13.348.3 17.3 18.5

Gains and losses on exchange traded contracts subject to daily margining requirements are settled daily. The fair value of such contracts included above

reflects the last day's variation margin.

Maturity of over the counter trading contracts

2004 2003
Notional Notinag®
principal Fair value Fair value pringagal Fairvaue Fair valLg
amount asset liability amcunt asset haility
1 yearor less 4,633.6 5.3 6.5 2,047 4 10.4 85
1toSyears 324.2 1.9 1.4 10730 45 61
Cver 5 years 138.7 2.4 1.9 1279 24 i9
5,096.5 9.6 9.8 10.248.3 173 16.5
Counterparty for over the counter trading contracts
2004 2003
Notional Netionz!
principal Fair value Fair value aercipAl “airvalya Fair vaiug
amount asset Hiability amraunt azzal atly
Financial institutions 4,896.2 6.3 9.4 10.062.7 14.0 15.8
Non-tinancial institutions 2003 33 0.4 1856 33 a7
5,096.5 9.6 9.8 10.248.3 173 18,5

The Bank had no non-margin exchange traded contracts at the year end (2003 - ENil).

Non-trading derfvatives

Non-trading transactions comprise derivatives held for hedging purposes to manage the asset and liability positions in the Bank. Derivatives used to
manage interest rate related positions include swaps. caps and floors. forward rate agreements and exchange traced futures. The foreign exchange rate

positicns are managed using forward currency transactions and swaps.

Al the year end. the notional principal amounts of the Bank’s non-trading derivatives were as follows:

Interest rate related ransactions

Interest rate swaps

Notional
principal
amount

2,577.0

2004

Falr value
asset

17.8

Fair value
liability

16.1

Monong:
principal
amaGunt

1.864.8

2003

Farvaluz

anset

2286

Fairvalue

akiity

i8.1
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28. Derivatives and cther financial instruments {continued)

With the exception of the unrecognised gains/losses outlined in the following note on hedge transactions. the fair values of the non-trading derivatives have
beenreflected in the profit and loss account, offset by the underlying transactions being hedged

Maturity of over the counter interest rate refated transactions

1 year or less
1105 years
CQver 5 years

Allinterest rate related transaction counterparties were financial institutions.

Exchange rate refated transactions

Forward currency transaclions

Maturity of over the counter exchange rate related transactions

One year or less

(iii} Qther grialysis

Deating profitsi{losses)

2004 2003
Notional Ngtiznal
principal Fair value Fair value orncipal Farvaliz Faswaue
amount assat liahility amgurt assat atity
589.0 24 2] 4567 25 1.3
1,755.9 15.4 8.1 1.338.7 20.1 g1
2321 - 7.5 69.4 - 77
2,577.0 17.8 16.1 1.864.8 226 181
2004 2003
Financial Non-financial F nancial Non-financial
Total institutions institutions Taal tons nstiulicrs
503.5 4941 9.4 165 & 1501 158
2004 2303
Notional Netonal
principal Fair vaiua Fair value prncigal Fairvalug Fatvaue
amecunt asset linkility amount assat liznlity
503.5 1.4 15 165.9 1.2 1.1

Dealing profits/(losses) comprise the net gain or loss arising from trading transactions in securities and financial instruments but exclude any gains or
losses arising from financial fixed assets. Financial fixed assets are those assets intended for use on a continuing tasis in the Group's activities

Debt securities
Derivatives
Foreign exchange

Hedges

2004 2003
0.2) @10
- (1o
43 39
a1 8.3)

Hedge transactions are accounted for in accordance with the accounting treatment of the underlying transaction. Accordingly. hedge gaing or losses may
not be recognised at ail in the financial statements or. if recognised. the gains and losses may be deferred and held on the balance sheet. The Group had
no deferred gains or losses througheut the year ended 8 January 2005.
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28. Derivatives and other financial instruments {(continued)

The table below sets out the unrecognised and deferred gains and losses on hedges at 8 January 2005 and the movements during the year and the

pravious yaar.

Gains Losses Net
At 11 January 2003 38.5 {73} 3.2
Gains and losses arising in previous years that were recognised
inthe year ended 10 January 2004 (15.4) 4.3 (11.1}
Gains and Insses arising before 11 January 2003 that were not recognisedin
the year ended 10 January 2004 23.1 (3.0) 20.1
Gains and logses arising in the year ended 10 January 2004 that were not
recognised in the year ended 10 January 2004 (2.6} 1.9} (4.5}
At 10 January 2004 205 (4.9) 15.6
Gaing and losses arising in previous years that were recognised
inthe year ended 8 January 20035 {10.8) 2.0 (8.6)
Gains and losses arising befere 10 January 2004 that were not recognised in
the year ended 8 January 2005 9.9 {2.9) 7.0
Gains and losses anising in the year ended 8 January 2005 that were not
recognised inthe year ended 8 January 2005 6.6 (3.3) 33
At 8 January 2005 16.5 {6.2) 10.3
Of which
8 January 2003
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the year ended 14 January 2006 7.4 (2.3) 5.4
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the year endead 13 January 2007 or later 9.1 3.9 5.2
10 January 2004
Gains and losses expected to be recognised in the year ended 8 January 2005 10.6 (2.0) 8.6
Gains and losses expected o be recognised in the year ended 14 January 2006 or later 9.9 (2.9} 7.0

29. Fair values of financial instruments

The table below sets out a comparison of the book value and the fair value of all of the Group's financial instruments. off balance sheet financial instruments
and other financial instruments which have an active and liquid market.

The fair value represents the amount at which the instrument would be exchanged at 8 January 2005 in an arm's length transaction between two willing
parties. In the vast majority of cases. quoted market prices are readlly available and are used. otherwise prices are obtained by other well established
valuation techniques. which utilise present value cash fiows.

The fair value will approximate 10 the carrying value when instruments are carried in the balance sheet al market value or where the instruments are short
term or contain frequent repricing provisions,

2004 2003
Total Trading Non-trading Total Trading Non-trading
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Accrued Carryirg Fair Carrying Far Arcrued
Assets value value value value interest valae valLe valie valug nterest
Debt securities 1,676.8 §830.4 1,146.4 1,153.5 18.8 2.085.7 850 5 12352 12453 246
Equity shares 1.2 - 1.2 1.2 - 1.2 -~ itz 1.2 -
Interest rate derivatives 108 9.6 1.3 17.8 15.¢ 194 17.3 24 26 541
Exchange rate derivatives 14 - 1.4 1.4 - 12 - 12 1.2 -
1,690.3 540.0 1,150.3 1,173.9 34.7 21075 8678 1.239.7 1.270.3 78.7
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29, Fair values of financial Instruments {continued)

2004 2003
Total Trading HNon-trading el Tradag Non rading
Carvying Fair Carrying Fair Accrued Carryng Far Carmyirg Far Accred
Liabilities value value value value Interest valLa vaue value valuz iremast
Diebt securities inissue m.7 - 7.7 772.6 1.3 2247 - 2247 2247 a5
Non-equity shareholders’
funds 80.0 - 60.0 86.9 0.6 80.0 - 60.0 80.0 07
Interest rate derivatives 19.7 9.8 9.9 16.1 8.1 297 16.3 132 181 46.0
Exchange rate derivatives 1.5 - 1.5 15 - 1.1 - 11 1.1 -
B852.9 9.8 843.1 8771 10.0 3155 165 299.0 3839 47.2
The fair values and carrying values shown above exclude accrued interest.
30. Consolidated cash flow statement 2004 2003
Reconciliation of Group operating profit
to net cash (outflowd/inflow from operating activities
Group operating profit 132.0 1301
{Increase)/decrease in prepayments and accrued income {21.7) 281
Increase/{decrease) in accruals and deferred income 15.2 9.8)
Interest payable in respect of subordinated liabilities 21.0 138
Effect of exchange rate movements (4.3) (39}
Provigions for bad and doubtful debts 62.8 633
Depreciation 22.7 212
Amortisation of investments 1.4 23
Profit on sale of investments (6.4) (59
Loss on disposal of Fixed Assets - 0.3
Net cash flow from trading activities 2229 2395
{Decrease)/increase in deposits by Banks (122.4) 435
Increase in customer accounts 713.3 483.4
Increase in debt securities in issue 547.0 219.7
{increase)/decrease in [oans and advances to Barnks {295.8) 517.8
Increase in loans and advances to customers {1,542.0) (1.812.5)
Decrease in trading debt securities 3201 9103
Decrease in treasury and eligible bils - 180
Net movement of other assets and other liabilities 349 1.1
Net decrease in cheques in course of collection 13.4 4443
Net cash {outflowj/inflow from operating activities {108.4) 663.1
Analysis of the balances of cash Loans and
advances to
Cashand banks
balances at repayable an
central banks demand Total
At 11 January 2003 97.5 0.3 97.8
Change in year 42.9 0.1} 42.8
At 10 January 2004 140.4 0.2 130.6
Change in year 2.0 {2.6) 254
At 8th January 2005 172.4 (2.4) 170.0

The Group is required to maintain balances with the Bank of England which at 8 January 2005 amounted to £9.6 million (2003 - £7.2 million). This item is
included on the balance sheet as a part of loans and advances to banks.
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31. Segmental analysis

The Group's activities have been segmented between retail banking. other financial services (mainly leasing. advisory services and carrespondent

banking) and Unity Trust group.

Profit before taxation:
Retail banking
Other financial services

Shared costs:
Centralised services and processing
Management services and marketing

Prafit before Unity Trust group and associates
Unity Trust group and associates

Profit before taxation

Gross assets:

Retail banking

Qther financial services
Unity Trust group
Group central assets

Totat

Net assets:

Retail banking

Other financial services
Unity Trust group

Group central net assets

Total

Net assets are share capital. reserves and minority interest.

2004 2003
215.9 226.4
07 29
2166 209.3
(89.7) {57.9)
(39.2) (45.4)
127.7 126.0
43 4.1
132.0 1301
9,883.6 85616
2429 2437
350.0 2820
3938 390.7
16,879.3 94780
7413 501.3
17.3 17,6
293 275
(85.7} 89.3
7022 636.2

Costs which can be directly attributed to retail banking and other finarcial services have been allocated to these areas to determing the profit before

taxation for these segments
The Group's activities are in the UK

As the Bank is not required to disclose turnover, no segmenial analysis of turnover is provided.

32. Directors’ and officers’ loans

The aggregate amounts quistanding at 8 January 2005 from arrangements and agreements made by the Group Directors (including connected persons)

or officers of The Co-operative Bank p.l.c. during the year. and the number of persons concerned. were as follows:

Qirectors
loans
quastloans
Officers
loans
quasi-loans

Aggregata
amount

outgtanding

£6,620

£1,227,596
£30,363

Number

of persons.

13
15
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33. General
(i) Operating lease commitments

At the year end, annual commitmants under non-cancellable
operating leases ware:

Group

Expiring:

within 1 year

between T and 5 years

in 5 years cr mare

Bank

Expiring:

within 1 year

between 1 and 5 years
in 5 ygars of more

i) Average number of emplovees
The average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was made up as follows:

Fulktime
Part time

{iify Concentration of exposure

2004 2004 2003 20C3
Landg and Motor Land ard Wonar
buildings vehicles buidngs wehiles

1.3 1.0 08 10
21 - 22 -
7.6 - 76 -

1.0 1.0 10.7 1.0

13 1.0 08¢ 1.0
2.1 - 2.1 -
8.2 - g1 -
1.6 1.0 1.1 10
2004 2003

3317 3.34

1,039 969

4,356 4.310

The Group's exposure is vidually ail within the United Kingdom. The following industry concentrations of gross advances before provisions and suspended

interest are considered significant.

Bistribution. transport and hotels
Business and other services
Personal

(i) Belajed parties

482.4
1,737.8
5,509.4

2003

446.9
1.436.1
4.386.4

As the Bank is a 100% owned subsidiary of Co-operative Financial Senvices Limited. which itself is a 100% cwned subsidiary of Co-operative Group (CWS)
Limited. the Bank has taken advantage of the exemption contained in FRS 8 and has therefore not disclosed transactions or balances with entities which

farm part of that Group {or investees of the Group qualifying as related parties).

Transactians with other related parties as defined by FRS 8 hava not been discinsed because they are considerad ta have taken place in the normal course

of Banking business and as such are covered by banking confidentiality rules.

The consolidated financial statements of Co-operative Group (CWS) Limited within which the Bank is included can be otitained from the address given in

note 15.
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The Co-operative Bank pl.c

Cleared Balances

Retail Lending
Personal sector
Visa

Cther

Carporate sector

Total

Wholesale Placements
Debt securities

Wholesale lending

Cther assets

Total Assets

Retail Deposits

Personal sector
Caorporale sector

Total

Wholesale Deposits

Other liabilities

Suberdinated debi
Preference shares

Equity share capital. reserves

Total Liabilities

% Growth in retail lending
(year onyear)

2 Growth in retail deposits
(year on year)

Retail deposits

% retail loans

Risk Asset Ratio % (at year end)
Total

Ter1

=Restated on implementation of FRS19 in 2002,

Summarised average balance sheet

2000 anm 2002 2003 2004 Change Charge
£m em em £ £m £m kS
778 774 843 965 1,059 94 10
984 1116 1.362 2.218 4,070 1,854 84
1,296 1663 1,740 1,769 1,845 76 4
3.058 3.543 3.945 4950 6,974 2024 7
2,543 2,598 2870 2.702 1,723 (979) (36)
595 739 945 900 915 15 2
114 158 198 235 293 58 25
8310 7.338 7.958 8.787 9,905 1118 13
2,476 3.166 3673 4230 4,483 253 6
1,476 1.721 1.805 1,928 2,083 155 8
3.952 4887 5.478 6.158 6,566 408 7
1685 1.688 1645 1.665 2,142 477 29
128+ 163 163 174 255 &1 47
188 179 178 179 294 115 64
60 60 80 60 60 - -
297+ 361" 433 551 588 37 7
6.310 7338 7.958 8.787 9,905 1118 13
7 16 1 25 a4
13 24 12 12 7
129 138 139 124 94
13.7 13.7 14.1 135 15.0
94 99 106 105 10.2
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Consoligated profit and loss account history
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Met interest income

Non-interest income

CQperating income

Operating costs

Profit before bad debts

Provisions for bad debts

Qperating profit
Assaciated underakings
and exceptional items
Preafit before taxation

Taxation

Profit after taxation
Minority interests

Dividends

Retentions

Average numbers of staff
Net interest margin %
Costincome ratio %

Return on opening equity
shareholders’ funds %

Earnings per share

*Restated on implementation of FRS 19 in 2002

2000

200

The Co-operative Bank pl c

AGN3 2004 Change Change
£Em om £m 2m £m iy} E3
2941 3135 3296 3323 3249 {7.4) (2.2
1348 1421 1538 1706 1841 135 79
4290 455.6 483 4 502.9 509.0 6.1 12
(272.9) {281.9) {290.8) {309.5) {314.2) (4.7) 1.5
156.1 173.7 182.6 193.4 194.8 1.4 07
{59.9) {66.2) {70.1} {63.3) (62.8) 0.5 08
96.2 107.5 122.5 1301 132.0 19 15
01 - - - - - -
96.3 1075 1225 1301 132.0 19 15
(29.8) 3.7 (36.6) (39.1) {39.6) 0.5 13
66.5 75.8 859 91.0 924 1.4 15
(1.7} {1.8) {2.2) (2.1 {2.2) 01 4.8
5.6) (5.5 (5.5) (25.5) (25.5) - -
59.2 68.5 782 53.4 684.7 1.3 21
2,400 4.087 4161 4,310 4,356
4.8 4.4 42 39 3.4
636 61.9 60.2 615 61.7
22.2* 21.0% 198 176 15.2
8.46p 9.79p i1.17p 11.46p 7.70p




Equity share capital
Reserves

Preference shares

Sharenclders’ funds
Minority interests
Subordinated liabilities
Dept securities in issue
Ceposits by banks
Depaosits by customers

Cther liabilities

Tangible fixed assets

Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advarces to customers
Debt securities and bills

Cash. balances at central banks and
items in the course of collection from
other banks

Other assets

~Restated on implementation of FRS 19in 2002

Consolidated balance sheet history

2000 200 2007 2303 2004

&m £m £m are £m
35.0 350 350 550 55.0
290.9* 359.4% 437.6 5010 865.7
80.0 60.0 80.0 80.0 60.0
385.9% 454 4* 532.6 616.0 680.7
183 17.4 189 20.2 215
179.1 179.4 179.6 1782 327.6
341 87.5 5.0 2247 T
750.4 7273 748.5 7700 647.2
5.186.3 6,115.8 6.902.0 7.385.4 8,098.7
216.2% 244.4* 3010 282.5 3319
6.788.3 78262 8,687.6 9.478.0 10,879.3
692 87.3 784 919 94.0
580.6 7332 12910 7732 1,073.0
33637 38692 43846 6.1338 7,61341
24172 2.731.0 2.486.1 20739 1,676.8
178.6 259.3 262.7 2614 280.5
178.0 146 2 1748 1378 141.9
6.788.3 18262 8.687.6 9.478.0 10,879.3
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
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NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Megling of The Co-operative Bank p.l.c will be held at the Board Boom, 24th floor, CIS
Building, Miller Street, Manchester ME0 OAL, on Wednesday 11 May 2005 at 10.00am for the following purposes:

1 Toreceive the Notice convening the meeting.
To receive the Annual Reports and adopt the financial statements for the year ended 8 January 2005 together with the Auditor's Report
To approve the Remureration Report for the year ended 8 January 2005.

L NS

To accent the following recommendations of the Beard in respect of the Non-cumulative Irredeemable Preference Shares
fiy that the payment of the diviciend of 4.625p per £1 share an 30 November, 2004 be confirmed.
fiy  that adividend of 4.625p per £1 share be dectared and paid on 31 May 2005 to the registered holders as at 29 April 2005 providing
a dividend rate of 9.25 per cent per annum and making a total distribution of £6,550.000.
5. To accept the following recommendations of the Board in respect of the Crdinary Shares:
iy that the payment of the interim dividend of £15 million paid on 30 July 2004 be confitrmed
iy thatafinal dividend of €5 millien be declared and paid on 31 May 2005.

8. (&) Tore-elect the following Directars who retire by rotation. m accordance with the prowvisions of Article 108
() Granam Bennett, Chair, The Co-operative Bank p.l.c
(i) Richard Goddard. Executive Director, Finance and Risk
(i) John Marper, Executive Director, Risk and Compliance of CFS

Y To re-elect the following Directors who were appointed since the daie of the last Annual General Meeting, in accordance with the

provisions of Article 111
i} Tony Lancaster. independent Professional Non Executive Directer
(i} John Reizenstein, Executive Director, Finance and Actuarial of CFS
(w} Craig Shannon, Executive Director, Marketing of CFS

7. That KPMG Audit Pic be and are hereby re-appointed auditor of the Campany, to hold office fram the conclusion of this mesting urtil the
conclusion of the next General Meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company, at a rermuneration to be fixed by the Directors.

Registered Office: Registrar:

1 Balloan Street Computershare investor Services p.l.c
Manchester MGO 4EP PO. Box 82

Reg. No. 380937 (England) The Pavilions

Tel: 0161 832 3456 Bridgwater Road

Fax: 0161 829 4475 Bristol BS99 7NH

Tel: 0870 702 0003
By Order of the Board
Moira Lees,
Secretary
7 Aprit 2005

A member entitled 10 attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A proxy need not aiso be a
member. Furtther informatton on Preference Shareholders voting rights is given below.

Mermbers should note that to attend the meeting their shareholding must be registered on the register of the Company not later than 5.00pm on
27 Agril 2005. This applies to shares held in uncertified forms in CREST and to shares held in certified form

Notes:

1. Director Information

The bingraphies of the Directors up for re-election and re-agpointment at the Annual General Meeting can be found on page 32 of the Reporis
and financial statements.

2. Preference Shareholders - Extract from Articles of Association 4 (BH¢)

Voting and General Meetings

{i) The halders of the Preference Shares shall be entitled to receive notice of ang attend (gither in person or by proxy} all General Meetings of the
Campany. The holders of the: Preference Shares shall have a right to speak and vote at a Generai Megting of the Company anly if and when,
ai the date of the notice convening such meeting, the fixad preferential dividend payable (o them respectively has been in arrears for six
months or more after any date fixed for payment thereot, or if a resclution is to be proposed at such meeting abragating or varying any of the
respective rights or privileges attaching to their shareholding or for the winding-up of the Company or other returr of capital and then on such
resolution only.

iy Whenever the holders of the Preference Shares are entitled to vote at a General mesting of the Company upan any resolution propased at
such meeting, on a show of hands every holder who [being an individual) is present in person or {being & corporation) is present by a
represertative or by proxy shall have ong vote and. an a poll, shall have one vote in respect of gach Preference Share registered in the name
of such holder.
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